
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 
Wednesday, December 16, 2009 

Name Please rint Affiliation Phone No. 

- 8 j? -.,J;;_.3

-.S3lJJ 



2 

3 

4 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 
Wednesday, December 16, 2009 

Name (Please rint) Affiliation 

LO 

Phone No. 



Arizona Water Banking Authority 
3550 N. Central Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

Telephone 602-771-8487 
Fax 602-771-8685 

Web Page: www.azwaterbank.gov 

PLEASE POST 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given that there will be a meeting of the 
Arizona Water Banking Authority Commission on December 16, 2009 at 9:00 a.m. at the 
Arizona Department of Water Resources, 3550 North Central Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona 
85012, Upper/Middle Verde conference room on the 2

nd floor. The meeting is open to the 
general public. A copy of the agenda for the meeting is posted below. 

Dated this 14th day of December, 2009 

FINAL AGENDA 

Arizona Water Banking Authority Commission Meeting 

I. Welcome/Opening Remarks

II. Approval of Minutes
• September 16, 2009
• November 12, 2009 Special Meeting
• November 23, 2009 Work-Study Session

Ill. Water Banking Staff Activities 
• Deliveries
• Meetings
• Update on AWBA legislative amendment
• On-going Indian settlement negotiations
• Update on CAWCD v. Brewer

IV. Discussion and Potential Action on Proposed ADWR Self Funding Fees

V. Cortaro-Marana Irrigation District Water Storage Agreement
• Discussion
• Potential approval of Cortaro-Marana Irrigation District Water Storage Agreement

VI. Discussion and Approval of 2010 Annual Plan of Operation
• Overview of public comment
• Approval of 2010 Annual Plan of Operation



Page 2 
Arizona Water Banking Authority meeting 

VII. Discussion and Approval of CY 2010 Water Delivery Budget
• Overview of budget
• Adoption of budget

VIII. On-River Firming
• Discussion of Amending Agreement to Firm Future Supplies

■ Recognition of additional water acquired by MCWA and other subcontractors
■ Other editorial changes to Agreement to Firm Future Supplies

• Discussion of process for other entities outside Mohave County to participate in
on-river firming

IX. Interstate Water Banking
• Overview of interstate accounting and firming obligation
• Discussion of draft Recovery Agreement Among AWBA, CAWCD, SNWA, and

CRCN
• Discussion of acquisition of additional water supplies

X. Call to the Public

Future Meeting Dates: 
Wednesday, March 17, 2010 
Wednesday, June 16, 2010 
Wednesday, September 15, 2010 
Wednesday, December 8, 2010 

All visitors must use the south elevators; please stop at the 2
nd 

floor to sign-in and receive a visitor's badge. 
Badges are to be displayed at all times. Visitors are also required to sign out and return their badges. Thank 
you for your assistance. 

Persons with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language interpreter, by 
contacting Virginia O'Connell at (602) 771-8491, TDD# (602) 771-8501. Requests should be made as early 
as possible to allow time to arrange the accommodation. 



ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

Draft Minutes 
1 

September 16, 2009 

Arizona Department of Water Resources 

Welcome/Opening Remarks 
Chairman Herb Guenther welcomed the attendees. All 
members of the Authority were present except for ex-officio

member, Representative Kirk Adams. Maureen George 
attended via teleconference. Chairman Guenther announced 

AUTHORITY MEMBERS 
Herbert R. Guenther, Chairman 
Maureen R. George, Vice-Chairman 
Tom Buschatzke, Secretary 
John Mawhinney 
Lisa A. Atkins 

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 
The Honorable Steve Pierce 
The Honorable Kirk Adams 

the new chief counsel for the Arizona Department of Water Resources (ADWR), Ken 
Slowinski, noting he would be attending AWBA meetings on occasion. 

Approval of Minutes of June 17, 2009 Meeting 
The Authority approved the minutes of the June 17, 2009 meeting. 

Staff Activities 
Virginia O'Connell briefed the Commission on AWBA water deliveries for calendar 
year 2009. She noted that intrastate deliveries were nearly complete. All scheduled 
deliveries for the Pinal and Tucson AMAs have been made. There are 
approximately 13,000 acre-feet of deliveries remaining for the Phoenix AMA, which 
are scheduled for Groundwater Savings Facilities (GSF). She reminded the 
Commission that the 2009 Plan of Operation had been amended last April to 
reclassify 25,000 acre-feet of intrastate deliveries to the Pinal AMA as interstate. 
The GSFs have started to take those deliveries. A little over 9,000 acre-feet have 
been delivered, leaving approximately 15,000 acre-feet for the remainder of the year. 

Ms. O'Connell informed the Commission that the Central Arizona Water 
Conservation District (CAWCD) indicated they would be analyzing their customer's 
water supply needs now that the peak of the summer has passed; whether entities 
would be turning back water or needing additional supplies. Depending on the 
outcome, additional water could become available for remarketing or for the AWBA. 

Ms. O'Connell also pointed out that it is the time of year that staff often receives 
requests from other CAP water users for the AWBA to step aside on its water 
deliveries. She reiterated that the AWBA only had GSF deliveries scheduled for the 
remainder of the year and clarified that these are different from deliveries to 
underground storage facilities because they are a direct use of water. The irrigation 
districts have incorporated use of the AWBA's in-lieu water into their farming 
operations. Ms. O'Connell stated that based on this fact, it does not appear there is 
opportunity for the AWBA to step aside this year. Tom Buschatzke inquired if the 
AWBA had ever turned down a request for a step-aside and if it was a decision 

1 
Please note that these are not formal minutes but a summary of discussion and action of the 

meeting. Official minutes are prepared prior to the next Authority meeting and are approved at that 
meeting. 



made at the staff level or if it is based on direction from the Commission. Ms. 
O'Connell responded that while the AWBA has historically tried to accommodate 
requests for step aside, at the end of 2008, staff was directed by the Commission to 
decline a request from Philip Saletta from the Town of Oro Valley because of t he 
circumstances at the time. The Commission had also stated that any future requests 
would be determined on a case-by-case basis. 

Ms. O'Connell reviewed the recovery schedule for developing Intentionally Created 
Unused Apportionment (ICUA) for the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California (Metropolitan). Recovery remains ahead of schedule. CAWCD has 
recovered approximately two-thirds of the scheduled amount, leaving about 10,000 
acre-feet for the remainder of the year. No issues are anticipated. 

Kim Mitchell updated the Authority on the State budget for fiscal year (FY) 2010. 
She noted that House Bill 2643, the trailer bill to Senate Bill 1188 (General 
Appropriations Act 2009/10), identified a transfer of $5.4 million from interest 
earnings on the Arizona Water Banking Fund to the State General Fund. The only 
source for this fund transfer was the Interstate Resource Account. The transaction 
was completed on July 23rd . 

Ms. Mitchell also noted that staff will be arranging to meet with key legislators in the 
next two months to provide informational background of the AWBA's activities and 
obligations. Commission members may attend the meetings absent a quorum. Lisa 
Atkins requested that staff brief the Commission on the AWBA's priorities prior to 
these meetings. 

Ms. Mitchell commented that at the last AWBA meeting, the Commission authorized 
Chairman Guenther to sign the intergovernmental agreement (IGA) between the 
AWBA and the Gila River Indian Community (the Community) that identifies the 
procedures for delivering water for meeting a Southside Replenishment obligation 
and/or for establishing the Southside Replenishment Bank. The IGA has since been 
fully executed. She noted that the Community has also provided written approval for 
the direct delivery of 1,000 acre-feet of water in calendar year 2009 that the AWBA 
had scheduled prior to the execution of the IGA. Staff will work with CAWCD staff to 
properly account for the classification and payment of this delivery. 

With regard to on-river firming, Ms. Mitchell informed the Commission that staff 
would be working on an efficient approach by which fourth priority M&I users along 
the Colorado River can be given opportunity to firm their entitlements. The issue will 
be discussed in greater detail at the next AWBA meeting in December. 

Ms. Mitchell also informed the Commission that staff had been notified that the 
Government Information Technology Agency (GITA) is requiring that all Arizona 
State government groups, including agencies, boards, and commissions, comply with 
standardization of the newly approved State Government Web Portal. All groups are 
required to maintain a consistent look and feel in their website designs. Staff will be 
working with ADWR's IT staff on meeting these requirements. Mr. Buschatzke 
inquired if the new web format would limit staff's ability to post documents. Ms. 

2 



Mitchell responded that it should not be a problem. 

Tom Harbor (CAWCD) provided an overview of the potential sale of CAWCD's Avra 
Valley Recharge Project (AVRP) to the Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement 
District (Metro). CAWCD staff had been directed by its Board of Directors to develop 
the principles of the agreement and to present the proposal to the Tucson AMA 
stakeholders. The Institutional Policy Advisory Group (IPAG) was briefed on the 
concepts of the agreement and was generally supportive. The current draft 
agreement constitutes a three-party arrangement where CAWCD would transfer 
ownership of the facility to Metro, Metro would assign long-term storage credits 
(credits) in lieu of cash to the Central Arizona Groundwater Replenishment District 
(CAGRD), and the CAGRD would in-turn reimburse CAWCD through a transfer of 
funds. On average, the facility only represents three percent of the Tucson AMA's 
total storage capacity, therefore its sale should not impact the AWBA's ability to store 
water. Mr. Harbor commented that if Metro stores at AVRP it would free up storage 
capacity elsewhere. Under the agreement, any unused capacity at AVRP would also 
be available to the CAGRD and AWBA. He also noted that CAWCD's ability to 
recover the stored water should not be a concern, but as a precaution the contract 
includes a provision that retains CAWCD's right to recover from within the area of 
impact of the facility. Mr. Buschatzke thanked Metro for including the provision in the 
contract. Mike Block (Metro) noted that Metro currently has a CAP allocation of 
8,850 acre-feet that will increase by 4,602 acre-feet in 2012 from a reallocation of 
previously uncontracted water. He commented that Metro had also been involved in 
the origination of the project. The CAWCD Board will be taking action in the near 
future. 

Draft 2010 Annual Plan of Operation 
Ms. O'Connell noted that the Draft 2010 Annual Plan of Operation (Plan) 
incorporated CAWCD's new policy for distributing excess CAP water. The policy 
identified a pool of 175,000 acre-feet to be shared between the AWBA and the 
CAGRD for its replenishment reserve obligation. The draft Plan utilizes 148,000 
acre-feet of this pool, which is the amount remaining after subtracting the CAGRD's 
current projected use. Ms, O'Connell commented that CAWCD had informed staff 
the previous day that the Bureau of Reclamation (Bureau) would also be included in 
the AWBA/CAGRD pool for Indian firming purposes. This had been touched on 
during the Access to Excess process when the Bureau raised concerns as to which 
category their orders would fall into. CAWCD staff clarified that the pool was 
established for certain long-term banking purposes, including Arizona's obligation for 
Indian firming, therefore Federal Indian firming would also qualify for this pool. This 
is in keeping with the terms of the Revised Stipulation, which grants federal access 
to excess pools created by CAWCD on "the same terms and conditions as for other 
users in that category." Ms. O'Connell noted the Bureau is proposing to store 3,000 
acre-feet of water, but it is not clear if that amount will come from the AWBA's portion 
or the CAGRD's. The CAGRD had initially indicated they might not need the full 
amount of their projected use. She also pointed out that it is possible additional 
supplies could become available after all water orders are submitted to CAWCD. 

3 



Ms. O'Connell reviewed the proposed delivery schedule (Table 2) noting it was still 
preliminary because the monthly delivery amounts and the actual storage capacity 
available to the AWBA at CAP facilities will not be known until all orders are placed 
with CAWCD. There may also be an opportunity to store 5,000 to 7,000 acre-feet at 
GSFs in the Tucson AMA, which would shift deliveries from the underground storage 
facilities. Discussions with GSF operators in that AMA are ongoing. Deliveries in the 
Phoenix AMA include 5,000 acre-feet to the Roosevelt Water Conservation District 
(RWCD) GSF. The AWBA has not partnered with RWCD in several years because 
capacity was not available. However, the District's contracts with other partners are 
expiring, making some capacity available. Storage in the Pinal and Tucson AMAs 
was limited to the amount of funding estimated to be available in those AMAs. Mr. 
Buschatzke inquired how GSF deliveries would affect the Tucson AMA given t hat all 
available funds are currently expended. Ms O'Connell responded that because 
storage at GSFs is less expensive, more water could be stored with the funds 
available. The Plan also identifies the direct delivery of 1,000 acre-feet for the 
purpose of establishing the Southside Replenishment Bank. This is the minimum 
amount the AWBA is required to deliver annually until the 15,000 acre-feet maximum 
is met. The Plan does not include storage for interstate purposes at this time. 

Ms. O'Connell noted that the water delivery rate increased $51 to $133/acre-foot for 
intrastate deliveries and decreased $2 to $231/acre-foot for interstate deliveries. 
Intrastate rates have increased because CAWCD's Board concluded at its rate 
setting meeting in June that the incentive priced water rate was no longer needed 
since there was sufficient demand for water. With regard to the cost share paid by 
GSF operators, staff is recommending an increase of $1 to $33/acre-foot. Although 
there is no interstate storage planned, the rate would remain the same at $26/acre
foot. The total estimated cost of the current draft Plan is approximately $18.7 million. 

Ms. O'Connell commented that staff had met with GSF operators in Tucson to 
discuss an appropriate cost share. Based on the data submitted, which included a 
range of groundwater pumping costs and cost shares paid by other partners, a 
reasonable amount would be $15/acre-foot. She also noted that Cortaro-Marana's 
Board had indicated that they would not be able to partner with the AWBA at 
$20/acre-foot cost share because the cost would be too high. Mr. Block commented 
that Metro had no objection to a $15 cost share since it did not create competition for 
capacity. The Commission directed staff to pursue GSF participation in the Tucson 
AMA at a $15/acre-foot cost share. 

Staff had met with AWBA partners in all three AMAs. Some of the irrigation districts 
had pointed out that some of their farmers are reverting to cotton because of the 
drop in grain prices. Chairman Guenther inquired why prices had fallen. Staff 
responded that because of the drop in dairy subsidies, operators were reducing the 
number of livestock, which also reduced the demand for feed. As a result, water use 
was expected to decrease because cotton has a lower consumptive use rate than 
certain feed crops such as alfalfa. 

The Commission directed staff to present the draft Plan to the public at the GUAC 
meetings scheduled in the three AMAs. 

4 



Discussion and Potential Action on Assignment of Long-term Storage Credits 
from the Tohono O'odham Nation Pursuant to A.R.S. § 45-841.01 
Ms. Mitchell informed the Commission that staff received a letter from Chairman 
Norris of the Tohono O'odham Nation offering the assignment of long-term storage 
credits to the AWBA. The offer is being made pursuant to the Southern Arizona 
Water Rights Settlement Act (SAWRSA). The Tohono O'odham Nation may accrue 
credits to further the implementation of the settlement, however they are statutorily 
required to offer to sell to the AWBA ten percent of any credits accrued from water 
delivered to the Mission Mine Complex. The credits must be offered at a price per 
acre-foot that is equal to the AWBA's delivery and storage costs at the time of sale. 
Chairman Norris is offering 234 acre-feet of credits at $97 per acre-foot. While there 
is a restriction that the credits may not be recovered within five miles of the exterior 
boundary of the reservation, there is also a benefit to the AWBA because the five 
percent cut to the aquifer has already been deducted. Ms. Mitchell noted that all of 
the requirements for accruing the credits had been met. She reminded the 
Commission that this was the AWBA's only authorization to purchase credits. The 
cost of the credits is approximately $23,000 and could be purchased from withdrawal 
fees collected in the Tucson AMA this year. Mr. Buschatzke inquired if these credits 
will be tracked separately since there is a restriction on recovery. Ms. Mitchell 
responded that they would and clarified that ADWR keeps track of where credits 
originated through the water storage permit number. The credits will be tagged in 
this manner when they are assigned to the AWBA and reassigned in the future. 
AWBA staff will also notify the recipients of the recovery restrictions when they are 
assigned. The acquisition of these credits would be part of the 2009 Plan of 
Operation. 

Mr. Mawhinney made a motion to approve the assignment of long-term storage 
credits from Tohono O'odham Nation. Ms. Atkins provided the second to that 
motion. The motion carried. 

Interstate Water Banking 
Tim Henley reviewed Resolution 2009-1 , which outlines the responsibilities and 
limitations of the Authorized Representative identified in the Second Amended 
Agreement for Interstate Water Banking. Mr. Mawhinney made a motion to adopt 
AWBA Resolution 2009-1. Mr. Buschatzke provided the second to that motion. The 
motion carried. 

Mr. Henley noted that action to approve the Third Amended Interstate Agreement 
was not necessary because the outstanding issues were resolved with the adoption 
of Resolution 2009-1 . 

Mr. Henley reviewed the third quarter interstate accounting table, which now also 
includes activities associated with the Nevada Operating account. Mr. Henley 
inquired if staff should continue to loan funds to Nevada from the Resource account 
since operating funds are now available. The Commission questioned if the funds 
remaining in the Resource account were vulnerable given the State's budget deficit. 
Mr. Henley commented that if the funds were not used they would likely be subject to 
legislative transfer. He indicated that staff would be discussing next year's interstate 

5 



storage at their upcoming meeting with the Southern Nevada Water Authority. Mr. 
Mawhinney recommended that staff develop a plan for expending the funds. Mr. 
Henley commented that CAWCD is exploring the potential for acquiring additional 
new water in light of the recent demand for Excess CAP water. They are currently 
assessing opportunities along the Colorado River. The AWBA could participate in a 
partnership with CAWCD if appropriate. Mr. Buschatzke pointed out that if interstate 
funds are protected it would leave withdrawal fees vulnerable at the expense of M&I 
firming. Chairman Guenther commented that in his discussions with the Governor's 
office and the Legislature he had repeatedly asked that interstate funds not be 
touched. They had indicated that they would not sweep funds in the Operating 
account, but that they were open to sweeping the interest that had accrued on funds 
in the Resource account. Mr. Mawhinney noted he wanted to follow through with 
these discussions. Mr. Henley commented that staff would develop a schedule 
matrix that focuses on issues important to the AWBA. Mr. Mawhinney suggested 
meeting with the Chairman of the Appropriations Committee for both the Senate and 
the House instead of meeting with individual legislators. Chairman Guenther 
suggested including the Chairmen of the Natural Resources Committees. · Mr. 
Henley pointed out that when the Legislature transfers funds, unless specified, the 
Commission determines which funds will be affected. 

Mr. Henley briefed the Commission on the Interstate Water Banking Report for Fiscal 
Year (FY) 2009. The report is statutorily required to be submitted to the Joint 
Legislative Budget Committee (JLBC) by October 1 of each year. This is the third 
year that the report will be submitted. The report identifies an ending balance for 
FY2009 of approximately $11 million. A footnote has been included identifying the 
legislative transfer of $5.4 million that occurred in July of 2009. Ms. Atkins inquired if 
the report was final. Mr. Henley commented that the report was not an action item 
and clarified that the first report, which was for fiscal years 2005 and 2006, had been 
approved by the Commission, but that subsequent reports are submitted by the 
AWBA manager. 

Call to the Public 
There were no additional comments. 

Consideration of Action to go into Executive Session of the Authority Commission 
pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03.A.4 to discuss with their attorneys and AWBA staff 
potential litigation by CAWCD regarding funds of the Arizona Water Banking 
Authority. 
Chairman Guenther stated that the Commission would not be meeting in executive 
session because a lawsuit regarding funds of the AWBA had not been filed by 
CAWCD. 

The meeting adjourned at 11: 15 a.m. 

6 



ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

Draft Minutes 
1 

November 12, 2009 

Arizona Department of Water Resources 

Welcome/Opening Remarks 
Chairman Herb Guenther welcomed the attendees. All 
members of the Authority were present except for ex-officio

member, Representative Kirk Adams. Maureen George and 
John Mawhinney attended via teleconference. 

Amended 2009 Plan of Operation 

AUTHORITY MEMBERS 
Herbert R. Guenther, Chairman 
Maureen R. George, Vice-Chairman 
Tom Buschatzke, Secretary 
John Mawhinney 
Lisa A. Atkins 

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 
The Honorable Steve Pierce 
The Honorable Kirk Adams 

Kim Mitchell informed the Commission that staff had received a letter from the 
Southern Nevada Water Authority (SNWA) notifying the AWBA that Nevada wanted 
to release up to 40,000 acre-feet of Intentionally Created Unused Apportionment 
(ICUA) to Arizona in 2009 for storage purposes. The SNWA also notified the Bureau 
of Reclamation (Bureau) of its intent to make unused apportionment available to the 
AWBA. Chairman Guenther inquired if the storage of Nevada's ICUA would be 
applied to the AWBA's obligation to store 1.25 million acre-feet of long-term storage 
credits (credits) for Nevada. Staff commented that it would and that by the end of 
2009, approximately 590,000 acre-feet of credits will have accrued towards that 
obligation. Tom Buschatzke pointed out that SNWA's letter to the Bureau states that 
the Central Arizona Project (CAP) would make its best efforts to store this water 
while also trying to ensure that Arizona's full apportionment of 2.8 Million acre-feet 
(MAF) was put to beneficial use. He questioned if the storage of Nevada's ICUA 
would put full use of Arizona's entitlement at risk. Ms. Mitchell responded that it 
would not and that she believed the statement was intended to acknowledge that 
Nevada's ICUA was in addition to Arizona's entitlement. Larry Dozier (CAWCD) 
clarified that while it is necessary to get an early start on diverting Nevada's ICUA, 
CAWCD did not want to incur an inadvertent overrun if 40,000 acre-feet of ICUA is 
not made available by Nevada. Diversions will be reconciled at the end of the year to 
ensure that Arizona's full entitlement is utilized. 

Virginia O'Connell briefed the Commission on the amendment to the 2009 Plan of 
Operation (Plan). She reminded the Commission that the Plan was previously 
amended in April to include 25,000 acre-feet of interstate deliveries to the Pinal 
Active Management Area (AMA). This proposed amendment identifies an additional 
35,000 acre-feet of interstate deliveries to the Phoenix AMA and 5,000 acre-feet to 
the Tucson AMA. The delivery and storage costs are estimated at $10 million. 
Funds for this amount will be requested from SNW A. 

1 
Please note that these are not formal minutes but a summary of discussion and action of the 

meeting. Official minutes are prepared prior to the next Authority meeting and are approved at that 
meeting. 



Lisa Atkins made a motion to adopt the Amended 2009 Plan as presented with any 
minor or editorial changes. Mr. Buschatzke provided the second to that motion. The 
motion carried. Ms. Mitchell noted that staff would provide notification to SNWA and 
the Bureau confirming the AWBA's proposed storage of Nevada's ICUA. 

Discussion and Potential Approval of Correspondence Addressing ADWR's 
Budget Reduction Submittal to the Governor's Office of Strategic Planning and 
Budget 
Ms. Mitchell briefed the Commission on the proposed budget reduction plan 
submitted by the Arizona Department of Water Resources (ADWR) to the Governor's 
Office of Strategic Planning and Budget (OSPB) in response to their request for a 
15% funding level reduction on general and other Non-appropriated funds for fiscal 
year 2010. Although the proposed plan recognized that the AWBA had already 
contributed more than its fair share and that it was inappropriate to include 
reductions to Non-appropriated funds that are available to other governmental 
agencies such as the AWBA, the proposed plan included a reduction to the Arizona 
Water Banking Fund (Banking Fund) of approximately $785,000 to meet the target 
reduction for Non-appropriated funds. Ms. Mitchell noted that transfers from the 
Banking Fund for the last two fiscal years totaled $30.5 million. 

Chairman Guenther recused himself from the discussions due to a conflict of interest 
as Director of ADWR. He did however provide comments clarifying that the 15% 
reduction actually amounted to 30% because it was based on half the fiscal year 
(FY). The proposed plan would result in ADWR staff reductions of approximately 
40%. Given the current economic conditions, Commission members discussed how 
the AWBA could meet its obligations and goals, including its relationship with ADWR 
and CAWCD. Tom Buschatzke pointed out that the latest legislative transfer 
specified which funds would be transferred from the Banking Fund. He comme·nted 
that the Commission should be included in any decisions concerning future fund 
transfers. The Commission directed staff to draft a letter to the Governor that 
addresses the points discussed at the meeting, including the AWBA's relationship to 
ADWR, the impacts of further budget cuts on the AWBA's ability to meet its goals 
and obligations, and that the AWBA be included in any discussions regarding the 
Banking Fund. The Commission also asked staff to include the AWBA's position 
statement letter, dated May 5, 2009, as an attachment. 

Call to the Public 
Kim Mitchell announced that the AWBA could potentially have a work-study session 
on November 23rd or 24th to discuss a paper on interstate recovery and the 
acquisition of additional water supplies utilizing monies in the Nevada Resource 
subaccount. Commission members inquired if the discussion on recovery could be 
expanded to include intrastate recovery. 

The meeting adjourned at 2:02 p.m. 

2 



ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 
Draft Minutes 1 

November 23, 2009 
Arizona Department of Water Resources 

Welcome/Opening Remarks 
Chairman Herb Guenther welcomed the attendees. All 
members of the Authority were present except for ex-officio

members, Senator Steve Pierce and Representative Kirk 
Adams. Maureen George and John Mawhinney attended via 
teleconference. 

Recovery Planning 

AUTHORITY MEMBERS 
Herbert R. Guenther, Chaimian 
Maureen R. George, Vice-Chaimian 
Tom Buschatzke, Secretary 
John Mawhinney 
Lisa A. Atkins 

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 
The Honorable Steve Pierce 
The Honorable Kirk Adams 

Tom McCann (CAWCD) gave a presentation on CAWCD's recovery planning, which 
included an evaluation of recovery needs based on future demand projections and 
worst case scenario shortages, methods for recovering long-term storage credits, 
and recovery opportunities within the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson Active Management 
Areas (AMA). Chairman Guenther inquired what the maximum recovery amount was 
that Nevada could request annually. Mr. Mccann responded that the maximum that 
Nevada could request, after the initial ramp up beginning with 20,000 acre-feet, is 
40,000 acre-feet. However during shortages that affect Nevada, up to 53,000 acre
feet could be requested. Tom Buschatzke questioned if sufficient recovery capacity 
would be available in the Pinal AMA when agricultural pool water is not available and 
the irrigation districts rely on groundwater to meet demand. Mr. McCann responded 
that CAWCD would focus recovery on wells that were currently underutilized. 
CAWCD could also recover interstate credits that are located in the Phoenix and 
Tucson AMAs. Mr. Buschatzke inquired if some of the recovery wells in the Pinal 
AMA are also in the Southside Protection Zones. Mr. McCann commented that staff 
would review the locations of the underutilized wells. Mr. Buschatzke suggested that 
CAWCD focus on recovery within the area of impact of storage when applying the 
indirect recovery method so that excessive groundwater pumping is avoided. Mr. 
Mawhinney inquired if CAWCD's recovery agreements have been strengthened to 
ensure CAWCD's ability to recover when necessary. Mr. McCann noted that 
CAWCD is using other mechanisms to encourage irrigation districts to participate in 
recovery, such as price incentives for recovery as part of the water delivery rate 
structure. 

Kim Mitchell provided an update on discussions between the AWBA, CAWCD, and 
the Southern Nevada Water Authority (SNWA) on developing a recovery agreement. 
She noted that a draft of the recovery agreement will be provided at the AWBA's 
meeting in December for discussion. Larry Dozier (CAWCD) noted that the draft 
agreement would also be presented at the CAWCD Board of Director's meeting in 

1 
Please note that these are not formal minutes but a summary of discussion and action of the 

meeting. Official minutes are prepared prior to the next Authority meeting and are approved at that 
meeting. 



December. Examples for different cost estimates will be included as an attachment 
to the agreement. The parties anticipate that a final draft of the agreement will be 
completed by the first quarter of next year. 

Discussion of Acquisition of Additional Water Supplies 
Tim Henley noted that at the direction of the Commission, staff met with ADWR and 
CAWCD Staff to begin to evaluate opportunities for acquiring additional sources of 
water utilizing funds from the Nevada Resource Account to store water to meet 
Arizona's obligation to Nevada. Recent projections suggest that the amount of 
excess water available to the AWBA is declining. He briefed the Commission on the 
various opportunities that were discussed, which included potential water supplies, 
the mechanisms that could be employed to create additional water, and the issues 
and questions that must be addressed before pursuing a particular opportunity. 
Chairman Guenther inquired how the process for acquiring water corresponded with 
CAWCD's ADDWATERprocess. Mr. McCann commented that he viewed the 
processes to be separate, but if there was an advantage, they could be combined. 
Mr. Henley noted that the pros and cons would have to be evaluated with regard to 
the timeline for expending the Nevada funds. There were additional questions 
concerning the potential for developing intentionally created surplus as a water 
supply and the ability to release intentionally created unused apportionment to 
Nevada when requested. Mr. Henley reminded the Commission that current statutes 
only allow the AWBA to store water to meet its obligation to Nevada. However, there 
are mechanisms in the Storage and Interstate Release Agreement that allow for 
more efficient recovery through the credit exchange method. 

Staff requested that the Commission provide comments on the preliminary findings 
at the AWBA meeting in December. Mr. Henley commented that staff would 
continue to work with staff from ADWR and CAWCD to analyze and rank the various 
options based on the direction provided by the Commission. Staff anticipates 
providing the results of the analysis at the meeting in March. Ms. George requested 
that staff include in its analysis the AWBA's ability to meet its Indian firming and 
Nevada obligations with regard to decreasing water supplies and available funds. 
Steve Olson (AMWUA) encouraged the AWBA to work with stakeholders since many 
of questions identified in the discussion paper were affiliated with the ADDWATER 
process. 

Call to the Public 
There were no additional comments. 

The meeting adjourned at 4:52 p.m. 

2 



ai 
11. 

E 
� 

125 

100 

75 

50 

25 

80 

70 

ai 60 
,f 
E so 

� 40 -g 
ix 30 
5 i= 20 

10 

0 

I 

I 
I 
I 

-·7-

2009 DELIVERIES (by Month) 

Planned vs. Actual 

I ! 
' -

,/ l I 

V 1 I 
.,.J 

V I I 
__,,... 

I 

-
-

I 
� � = � - � � q � � - -

Months 

Pinal AMA (by Month) 

Planned vs. Actual 

I 
-� �1_ __ 

1 
__ L--1--1 --jf--1--1--1 

- -L__L__.j__J--+--i-,-
v 

-- -- . -

I WI/ - -+--+--t---1
I -� I �l-+--t---+----,-7 

�I-� ___, �1 ., 11 
jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep oct nov dee 

Months 

2009 Plan of Operation 
(Amended 11-12-09) 

INTRASTATE 

50 

ai 40 

.. 
---PLANNED (CUM) II I� 30 

20 
--,t,- ACTUAL (CUM) 11 I ix 

10 f--

0 

Phoenix AMA (by Month) 

Planned vs. Actual 
,--,---1--r-·--r-�

1 
� -

jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep oet nov dee 

-PLANNED 

c:::J ACTUAL 

--II- PLANNED (CUM} 

_._ ACTUAL (CUM) 

40 

j 30 

E 
� 
,:, 20 
C: 

0 
.c: 

a 

Months 

Tucson AMA (by Month) 
Planned vs. Actual 

jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep oet nov dee 

Months 

-PLANNED 
c:::J ACTUAL 
----- PLANNED (CUM} 
--ACTUAL (CUM} 

-PLANNED 
c:::J ACTUAL 
--- PLANNED (CUM) 
--ACTUAL (CUM} 



- 100 
.. 
.. 

e! 
75 

50 

25 

0 

jan 

40 

iii 30 
� 

-c 20 
C: "'

f: 10 

0 

feb mar 

2009 DELIVERIES (by Month) 
Planned vs. Actual 

apr may jun jul aug sep oct nov 

Monlhs 

Pinal AMA (by Month) 

Planned vs. Actual 

dee 

jan feb mar apr may jun Jul aug sep oet nov dee 

Months 

2009 Plan of Operation 
(Amended 11-12-09) 

INTERSTATE 

----PLANNED (CUM) 

_,._ ACTUAL (CUM) 

-PLANNED 

c::l ACTUAL 

----PLANNED (CUM) 

_,._ACTUAL (CUM) 

IL 

E 

"' 

0 

40 

30 

20 

10 

0 

40 

1j 30 

E 

! 20 

0 

{: 10 

0 

Phoenix AMA (by Month) 

Planned vs. Actual 

1--,-----, ---,, 
t 

jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep oct nov dee 

Months 

H-t-
0�

Tucson AMA (by Month) 

Planned vs. Actual 

- --f---+--l·--l-----1--, --1 

1-· 
-----i--+---+---+ ----1--•-

�- I _.JI 
Jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep oct nov dee 

Months 

-PLANNED 

c::::::JACTUAL 

----PLANNED (CUM) 

....,.-ACTUAL (CUM) 

-PLANNED 

c::::::JACTUAL 

---- PLANNED (CUM) 

_,._ ACTUAL (CUM) 



Actual deliveries updated 11-Dec-09 
Amended Plan of Operation 12-Nov-09 jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep oct nov dee total 

Phoenix AMA 

Intrastate 

GRUSP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

AGUA FRIA 0 0 0 0, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

HIEROGLYPHIC MTNS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TONOPAH DESERT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

CHCID 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

NMIDD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

QCID 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 599 1,767 332 0 2,698 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 599 2,285 2,671 1,142 6,697 

SRP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

GRIIDD 0 0 0 0 403 11,702 13,458 5,369 4,356 0 0 0 35,288 
0 0 0 0 403 11,702 13,458 5,369 4,356 1,038 0 0 36,326 

Subtot�I 0 0 0 0 403 11,702 13,458 5,369 4,955 1,767 332 0 37,986 
Total to date 0 0 0 0 403 12,105 25,563 30,932 35,887 37,654 37,986 37,986 37,986 
Projected total to date 0 0 0 0 403 12,105 25,563 30,932 35,887 39,210 41,881 43,023 43,023 

Interstate 

GRUSP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

AGUA FRIA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

HIEROGLYPHIC MTNS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,000 5,000 

TONOPAH DESERT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13,446 0 13,446 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,000 15,000 30,000 

CHCID 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

NMIDD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

QCID 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

SRP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TID 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13,446 0 13,446 
Total to date 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13,446 13,446 13,446 
Projected total to date 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,000 35,000 35,000 

Combined 

Subtotal 0 0 0 0 403 11,702 13,458 5,369 4,955 1,767 13,778 0 51,432 
Total to date 0 0 0 0 403 12,105 25,563 30,932 35,887 37,654 51,432 51,432 51,432 
Projected total to date 0 0 0 0 403 12,105 25,563 30,932 35,887 39,210 56,881 78,023 78,023 



Actual deliveries updated 11-Dec-09 
Amended Plan of Operation 12-Nov-09 jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep Oct nov dee Iola\ 

Pinal AMA 

Intrastate CAIDD 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,217 15,783 0 0 0 0 20,000 
0 0 0 0 0 0 4,217 15,783 0 0 0 0 20,000 

MSIDD 3,240 2,000 2,500 3,600 6,650 2,010 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,000 
3,240 2,000 2,500 3,600 6,650 2,010 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,000 

HIDD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

GRIC-Replenishment Bank 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 0 0 1,000 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 0 0 1,000 

Subtotal 3,240 2,000 2,500 3,600 6,650 2,010 4,217 15,783 0 1,000 0 0 41,000 
Total to date 3,240 5,240 7,740 11,340 17,990 20,000 24,217 40,000 40,000 41,000 41,000 41,000 41,000 
Pro1ected Iota/ lo dale 3,240 5,240 7,740 11,340 17,990 20,000 24,217 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 41,000 

Interstate CAIDD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,117 3,844 0 0 0 5,961 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,117 3,844 4,289 1,750 500 12,500 

MSIDD 0 0 5,000 4,026 0 1,290 2,990 2,800 2,560 1,890 0 0 20,556 

0 0 0 0 0 1,290 2,990 2,800 2,560 1,000 560 500 11.700 

HIDD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Subtotal 0 0 5,000 4,026 0 1,290 2,990 4,917 6,404 1,890 0 0 26,517 

Total to date 0 0 5,000 9,026 9,026 10,316 13,306 18,223 24,627 26,517 26,517 26,517 26,517 
Projected total to dale 0 0 0 0 0 1,290 4,280 9,197 15,601 20,890 23,200 24,200 24,200 

Combined 

Subtotal 3,240 2,000 7,500 7,626 6,650 3,300 7,207 20,700 6,404 2,890 0 0 67,517 

Total to date 3,240 5,240 12,740 20,366 27,016 30,316 37,523 58,223 64,627 67,517 67,517 67,517 67,517 
Projected Iola/ lo dale 3,240 5,240 7,740 11,340 17,990 21,290 28,497 49,197 55,601 60,890 63,200 64,200 65,200 

Tucson AMA 

Intrastate AVRA VALLEY 480 0 0 605 763 610 389 132 22 0 0 0 3,001 
480 0 0 605 763 610 389 132 22 0 0 0 3,001 

CAVSARP 0 0 0 4,348 4,910 2,341 0 0 0 0 0 0 11,599 
0 0 0 4,348 4,910 2,341 0 0 0 0 0 0 11,599 

PIMA MINE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 0 0 16 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

LOWER SANTA CRUZ 2,000 0 0 1,855 2,145 0 0 0 0 74 0 0 6,074 
2,000 0 0 1,855 2,145 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,000 

SAVSARP 0 0 0 0 0 4,525 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,525 

0 0 0 0 0 4,525 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,525 

KAI FARMS-RED ROCK 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,326 521 46 0 1,893 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,326 974 0 0 2,300 

Subtotal 2,480 0 0 6,808 7,818 7,476 389 132 1,348 611 46 0 27,108 

Total to date 2,480 2,480 2,480 9,288 17,106 24,582 24,971 25,103 26,451 27,062 27,108 27,108 27,108 

Projected total to date 2,480 2,480 2,480 9,288 17,106 24,582 24,971 25,103 26,451 27,425 27,425 27,425 27,425 

Interstate AVRA VALLEY 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 500 500 

CAVSARP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

PIMA MINE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 657 0 657 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,000 2,000 

LOWER SANTA CRUZ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 178 0 178 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,500 2.500 

SAVSARP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 838 0 838 

Total to date 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 838 838 838 

Projected total lo date 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,000 5,000 

eoiiiiirned 
Subtotal 2,480 0 0 6,808 7,818 7,476 389 132 1,348 611 884 0 27,946 
Total to date 2,480 2,480 2,480 9,288 17,106 24,582 24,971 25,103 26,451 27,062 27,946 27,946 27,946 
Projected Iola/ lo dale 2,480 -2,480 2,480 9,288 17,106 24,582 24,971 25,103 26,451 27,425 27,425 32,425 32,425 

TOTAL 5,720 2,000 7,500 14,434 14,871 22,478 21,054 26,201 12,707 5,268 14,662 0 146,895 
Total to date 5,720 7,720 15,220 29,654 44,525 67,003 88,057 114,258 126,965 132,233 146,895 146,895 146,895 
Projected total to dale 5,720 7,720 10,220 20,628 35,499 57,977 79.031 105,232 117,939 127,525 147,506 174,648 175,648 



MONTH 

Jan 
Feb 
Mar 
Apr 
May 
Jun 
Jul 
Aug 
Sep 
Oct 
Nov 
Dec 
Total 

CENTRAL ARIZONA PROJECT 

ANNUAL RECOVERY PLAN & USE 
Calendar Year 2009 

(in acre-feet) 

Revised 12/9/09 

Pinal County Irrigation Districts Recovery Schedule: 

MSIDD CAIDD HIDD CAGRD EXCHANGE 

SCH Used SCH Used SCH Used SCH Used 

'816 816 !:,00 605 0 0 0 
) , 122 1,122 500 631 0 0 . 0

1,587 1,587 1,200 1,369 0 0 ::: >o

'1,699 1,699 ,1,200 1,290 :'. 0 0 .• o

i.1,004 1,004 1,400 1,524 0 0 :o 

· 999 999 ,1,500 1,511 '0 0 · o

· 1,586 1,586 1,500 1,570 ,;0 0 , Q

1,630 1,630 1,500 1,660 <0 0 0 

1,773 1,773 1,200 844 .0 0 ,0 

1,500 1,477 250 0 0 0 0 
1,284 1,000 250 0 ··0 100 0 

0 0 0 0 ,1,500 0 0 
15,000 14,693 11,000 11,004 1,500 100 .0 

TOTAL 

SCH Used 

0 t,316 1,421 
0 1,622 1,753 
0 2,787 2,956 
0 ''2,899 2,989 
0 2,404 2,528 
0 2,499 2,510 
0 3,086 3,156 
0 3,130 3,290 
0 2,973 2,617 
0 1,750 1,477 
0 1,534 1,000 
0 > 1 500' 0 
0 · 27,500 25,797

* Recovered water will be posted as Ag Settlement Pool water on all monthly delivery reports.

Total MWD credits for recovery ( 5% cut to aquifer+ 4,909 af losses) = 80,909 AF 

Less 2007 total recovered credits: = 16,804 AF 

Less 2008 total recovered credits: = 28,442 AF 

Less 2009 total recovered credits: = 25,797 AF 

Remaining credits to be recovered by CAP: = 9,866 AF 



THE METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT 
OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 

Office of the General Manager 

November 19, 2009 

Mr. David Modeer 
General Manager 
Central Arizona Water Conservation District 
P.O. Box 43020 
Phoenix, AZ 85080-3020 

Dear Mr. Modcer: 

Revised Recovery Request of Interstate Underground Storage Credits in 2009 

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (Metropolitan) and the Central Arizona 
Water Conservation District (CA WCD) agreed to recover 30,000 acre-feet of long-tenn storage 
credits in 2009 that were originally stored under the 1992 demonstration agreement entered into by 
Metropolitan and CA WCD to store Colorado River water in central Arizona. Due to unexpected 
changes in our water supply portfolio, it is necessary to reduce our initial request. 

Our staffs met to detennine a revised request that could be mutually agreeable to our agencies. 
Following up on that discussion, per Item 1 of the December 11, 2007 letter agreement among our 
agencies and the Arizona Water Banking Authority, we request that the total recovery amount for 
2009 be reduced to 27,500 acre-feet. The exact amount recovered will be determined at the end of 
the year. Additionally, staff have agreed to develop the remaining balance, estimated at 8,200 
acre-feet, of intentionally created unused apportionment in 2010 for this purpose. 

Thank you for your agency's cooperation. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact 
Mr. Bill Hasencamp of my staff at (213) 217-6520. 

With best regards, 

a�� 
Rog�Patterson 
Assistant General Manager 

HMR:jc 
o:\a\s\c\2009\HMR _ A WBA_ CA WCD _ MWD revised Recovery Request for 2009 _I I I 709.doc 

700 N. Alameda Street, Los Angeles, California 90012 • Mailing Address: Box 54153, Los Angeles, California 90054-0153 • Telephone (213) 217-6000 



THE METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 

Mr. David Modeer 
Page 2 
November 19, 2009 

cc: Mr. Timothy J. Henley 
Arizona Water Banking Authority 
3550 North Central Avenue 
Phoenix, AZ 85012 

Mr. Tom McCann 
Central Arizona Water Conservation District 
P.O. Box 43020 
Phoenix, AZ 85080-3020 

Mr. Gerald R. Zimmerman 
Colorado River Board of California 
770 Fairmont Avenue, Suite 100 
Glendale, CA 91203-l 035 

Ms. Lorri Gray-Lee 
Lower Colorado Region 
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 
P.O. Box 61470 
Boulder City, NV 89006-1470 



THE METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 

Mr. David Modeer 
Page 2 
November 19, 2009 

cc: Mr. Timothy J. Henley 
Arizona Water Banking Authority 
3550 North Central Avenue 
Phoenix, AZ 85012 

Mr. Tom McCann 
Central Arizona Water Conservation District 
P.O. Box 43020 
Phoenix, AZ 85080-3020 

Mr. Gerald R. Zimmerman 
Colorado River Board of California 
770 Fairmont Avenue, Suite I 00 
Glendale, CA 9 l 203-103 5 

Ms. Lorri Gray-Lee 
Lower Colorado Region 
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 
P.O. Box 61470 
Boulder City, NV 89006-1470 

bee: S. N. Arakawa 
K. A. Donhoff 
W. J. Hasencamp 
J. P. Matusak 
H. M. Ruzgerian
J. L. Scott
J. A. Vanderhorst
WRM Files



DRAFT 

12-30-08

PROPOSED LEGISLATION AUTHORIZING THE ARIZONA WATER 

BANKING AUTHORITY TO OBTAIN EXCESS CENTRAL ARIZONA 

PROJECT WATER FOR CERTAIN PURPOSES 

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Arizona: 

Section 1. Section 45-2402, Arizona Revised Statutes, is amended to read: 

45-2402. Definitions

Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in sections 45-101, 45-

402 and 45-802.01 have the same meaning in this chapter and for purposes of this 

chapter: 

1. "Authority" means the Arizona water banking authority.

2. "Banking fund" means the Arizona water banking fund.

3. "Central Arizona water conservation district" or "CA WCD" means the multi

county water conservation district established under title 48, chapter 22. 

4. "Commission" means the Arizona water banking authority commission.

5. "Decree" means the decree entered by the United States supreme court in

Arizona v. California, 376 U.S. 340 (1964). 

6. "EXCESS CENTRAL ARIZONA PROJECT WATER" MEANS CENTRAL

ARIZONA PROJECT WATER THAT IN ANY YEAR WOULD OTHERWISE NOT 
BE USED, RESOLD OR EXCHANGED PURSUANT TO LONG-TERM 
CONTRACTS AND SUBCONTRACTS FOR CENTRAL ARIZONA PROJECT 
WATER." 

6 7. "Indian firming" means measures taken to ensure that central Arizona project 

non-Indian agricultural priority water that is made available to Indian tribes pursuant to 

Public Law 108-451 may be delivered during water shortages in the same manner that 

water with a municipal and industrial priority in the central Arizona project system is 

delivered during water shortages. 

+ 8. "Water banking services" means services provided by the authority to

persons and Indian communities in this state to facilitate for those persons and Indian 

communities storage of water and stored water lending arrangements. Water banking 

services include the direct delivery of water to Indian communities in this state in 

replacement of or supplemental to the accrual of long-term storage credits pursuant to 

article 5 of this chapter. Water banking services include only arrangements by which 

water will be made available for use in this state. Water banking services do not include 

1 



interstate water banking undertaken by the authority pursuant to article 4 of this chapter. 

Water banking services may include: 

(a) Storage of water.

(b) Obtaining water storage permits.

(c) Accruing, exchanging and assigning long-term storage credits.

(d) Lending and obtaining repayment of long-term storage credits.

& 9. "Water banking services agreement" means an agreement entered into 

between the authority and a person or Indian community in this state under which the 

authority will provide water banking services to that person or Indian community. 

Section 2. Section 45-2427, Arizona Revised Statutes, is amended to read: 

45-2427. Limitation on powers

A. This chapter does not authorize the authority to exercise any right of eminent

domain. 

B. EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN SUBSECTION E OF THIS SECTION:

1. The authority shall not store Colorado river water that would otherwise have

been used in this state pursuant to a contract entered into pursuant to section 48-3703, 

paragraph 2, a section 5 contract under the Boulder Canyon project act (P.L. 108-6; 43 

United States Code section 617) with a priority that is equal to or higher than a contract 

entered into pursuant to section 48-3703, paragraph 2 or any other section 5 contract 

under the Boulder Canyon project act entered into before the effective date of this 

amendment to this section. 

2. The authority shall not store for interstate water banking purposes Colorado

river water that would otherwise have been used in this state. 

C. The authority shall not enter into contracts with agencies in California and

Nevada for the storage of water on their behalf until both of the following occur: 

1. Regulations are in effect, promulgated by the secretary of the interior of the

United States, that facilitate and allow the contractual distribution of unused entitlement 

under article Il(b )(6) of the decree. 

2. The director finds that the rules promulgated by the secretary of the interior

adequately protect this state's rights to Colorado river water, as those rights are defined 

by the decree. 

D. The authority shall not enter into water banking services agreements that will

provide water for use outside this state. The authority may cancel any water banking 

services agreement without penalty or further obligation if after entering into a water 

banking services agreement, the authority finds that the agreement will provide water for 

use outside of this state. Notice of this subsection shall be included in every water 

banking services agreement entered into by the authority. The cancellation under this 

2 



subsection shall be effective when written notice from the authority is received by all 

other parties to the water banking services agreement. 

E. NOTWITHSTANDING SUBSECTION B, THE AUTHORITY MAY

OBTAIN AND STORE OR REPLENISH, AS APPLICABLE, ANY OF THE 

FOLLOWING EXCESS CENTRAL ARIZONA PROJECT WATER SUPPLIES AS 

DESIGNATED BY CA WCD: 

1. ANY EXCESS CENTRAL ARIZONA PROJECT WATER MADE

AVAILABLE BY CA WCD IN A YEAR EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE AUTHORITY. 

THE AUTHORITY SHALL USE ANY EXCESS CENTRAL ARIZONA PROJECT 

WATER OBTAINED PURSUANT TO THIS PARAGRAPH IN A MANNER 

CONSISTENT WITH ARTICLES 3 AND 5 OF THIS CHAPTER OR CHAPTER 15, 

ARTICLE 3 OF THIS TITLE, INCLUDING MEETING INDIAN FIRMING 

OBLIGATIONS, REPLENISHING WATER UNDER THE GILA RIVER INDIAN 

WATER SETTLEMENT PROGRAM AND STORING WATER FOR MUNICIPAL 

AND INDUSTRIAL PURPOSES IN TIMES OF SHORTAGE. 

2. ANY EXCESS CENTRAL ARIZONA PROJECT WATER MADE

AVAILABLE BY CA WCD IN A YEAR FOR THE PURPOSE OF STORING WATER 

TO MEET A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION OF THE AUTHORITY UNDER AN 

INTERSTATE WATER BANKING AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO 

ARTICLE 4 OF THIS CHAPTER IF THE EXCESS CENTRAL ARIZONA PROJECT 

WATER RESULTED FROM THE ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL COLORADO 

RIVER WATER BY CA WCD UTILIZING MONIES CONTRIBUTED BY THE 

AUTHORITY. 

Section 3. Emergency 

This act is an emergency measure that is necessary to preserve the public peace, 

health or safety and is operative immediately as provided by law. 

3 



11/3/09 DRAFT 

Issue Summary: 

H.B. /S.B. 
(short title; assigned by leg counsel) 

FACT SHEET 

• The Arizona Water Bank Authority (A WBA) statutes identify several
purposes for which the A WBA can store excess Central Arizona
Project (CAP) water, including to secure water for Indian Settlements
and to protect municipal and industrial water users during times of
drought.

■ Additionally, the A WBA has a legislatively-approved contractual
obligation to store 1.25 million acre-feet of excess CAP water for the
State of Nevada (interstate water banking).

■ The Central Arizona Water Conservation District (CAWCD)
1 

has
developed procedures to distribute excess CAP water that establishes
pools of fixed volumes for different categories of use. One of the
pools identified is for shared use by the A WBA, Central Arizona
Groundwater Replenishment District (CAGRD) Replenishment
Reserve and the Federal Government.

• Current law allows the A WBA to store Colorado River water m
Arizona that would otherwise be unused.

■ As excess CAP water continues to diminish, the A WBA will have

difficulty meeting its statutory and contractual obligations.

Legislative Solution: 

■ Allow the A WBA to access CAP excess water that is set aside by the
CA WCD for A WBA purposes. This will not affect the commitment
by CA WCD to create an Agricultural Settlement pool.

• The A WBA purposes include firming municipal and industrial water
supplies, meeting the State's obligations for Indian settlements and
meeting contractual obligations for interstate water banking.

1 The CA WCD is the governing entity for the CAP. 



December 9, 2009 

Kim Mitchell, Manager 
Arizona Water Banking Authority 
3550 North Central Avenue 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

Re: Draft 2010 Plan of Operation 

Dear Ms. Mitchell: 

P .0. Box 36870 
Tucson, Arizona 85740 

M El"ROPOLITAN 

DOMESTIC 

WATER· 

IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT 

(520) 575-8100
(520) 575-8454 fax

www.metrowater.c9m 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Draft 2010 Annual Plan of Operation for the 
Arizona Water Banking Authority (A WBA). As a public water provider who is actively recharging 
CAP water and involved with regional water resources management within the Tucson Active 

· Management Area (AMA), the Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District (District)
requests our comments be incorporated into the final plan. Our comments are the following:

1. On Page 3, the volume of2.81 MAF in the first full paragraph under 2009 Plan of Operations
does not match the total volume of2.84 MAF listed on Figure 1. If space is available in the
2011 Plans and beyond, the A WBA should include a greater number of years on Figures 1, 2
and 3, such as the last five years instead of 3 years for trend analysis.

2. Under Available Funds on Page 7, last paragraph, last sentence, suggest clarifying why the
funds are needed, such as "for meeting M�Lfinning goals by 2019."

3. On Table 2. please either remove the interstate designation for recharge facilities or note all
recharge facilities with an interstate designation. Additionally, the tex·t on Page 7 under
«Av;1ilable Storage Facility Capacity" notes that A WBA has sufficient capacity to meet any
new storage needs if additional supplies become available. A new column should be
included on Table 2 adjacent to Permitted Capacity to reflect the available capacity to
A WBA. If additional supplies were made available, the information would prove. valuable
for stakeholder input and provide transparency for decisions on intrastate· and interstate
storage.

4. The District strongly recommends the section on Page 11 regarding CA WCD Recovery be
<}mended. The section needs to clarify that the current plan is prepared by CA WCD staff
and not endorsed as policy by the CA WCD Board. At the most recent CA WCD Boar4
meeting, the plan recommendation on indirect recovery and credit exchange did not receive
favorable comments or support by CA WCD Board members.



Ms. Kim Mitchen 

Draft 2010 Plan of Operation 
December 9, 2009 

Page2 

5. The District appreciates the decision by A WBA to have differential pricing for groundwater
savings facilities in the Tucson AMA compared to the Phoenix and Pinal AMA' s. The
decision for a lower cost share in the Tucson AMA will significantly help the A WBA meet
its M&I firming goal in the Tucson AMA.

6. It would be helpful if Table 6 under Interstate included the breakdown by AMA on how
many credits have been stored from the 595,620 acre-feet.

Again, thank you for the opportunity to comment on the draft plan. Please call me at (520) 575-
8100, if you have any questions on my comments. 

Sirn;erely, 

�� 
Michael W. Block 
District Hydrologist 

MWB/mwb 

c: Warren Tenney 



�·�.ri:--�� 

mesa�az 

December I 0, 2009 

Senator Herb Guenther 
Chairman 
Arizona Water Banking Authority 
3550 North Central Avenue 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

Rl:I Comments to the A WBA Draft 20 IO Plan of Operation 

Dear Senator Guenther, 

The City of Mesa appreciates the opportunity to review the Arizona Water Banking Authority 
(A WBA) Draft 2010 Plan of Operation. The City is grateful for the valuable service that the 
A WBA provides to the. State of Arizona. Mesa ti.tlly supports the efforts to maximize the use of 
Arizona's annual allocation of the Colorado River. Based on the operational methodology 
detailed in the Draft 2010 Plan of Operation, the City of Mesa respectfully su�m.its the following
comments fot tcvie\V at1d consideration. 

· · ·

Although the AWBA has taken on responsibilities beyond the firming of CAP water for 
municipal use, Mesa feels it is important thi1tthe B;mk never lose sight of the tact that by statute 
the Bank can only store otherwise unused CAP water; and per its agreement with the Southern 
Nevada Water.Authority cannot "engage in interstate b.ankingto the detrimMt of any water user 
in Arizona:.�• Direct delivery of CAP water to end users is and must remain the priority for CAP 
water in Arizona. 

On occasion, direct users pf CAP wafer may require larger water deliveries than projected. The 
Bank \vas designed with the purpose of "soaking up" excess water like a sponge; not with the 
purpose of taking priority over direct uses. Fortunately, the Bank can operate as intended by 
reserving use of the available USF capacity for the later portion of the yt!ar. That way, should a 
direct user of CAP water require additional deliveries of subcontracted water during the course 
ofthe year, such higher priority uses can be satisfied. 

According to the proposed "Water Delivery Schedule" in the Draft 20 IO Plan of Operation, the_ 
bulk of the AWBA water deliveries (approximately 70%) would occur in the first seven months 
of the year. Ir would be prudent fix the A WBA water deliveries to USFs to instead be 
dislributcd towards the end of the year_ CAP Subcontractors, such as. the City of Mesa, have an 
impo11anl public health-and-safety obligation to their custc.imcrs to ensure a sufficient supply of 
water will be available for consumption. Unfortunately, the Drat\ AWBA 2010 Plan of 
Operation could conflict with these obligations. The City of Mesa re,1ucsts that you review these 
comments, and adjust the proposed delivery schedule ti.-ir year 20 I 0. 



Arizona Water Banking Authority 
December 10, 2009 
Page2 

Last, please note that the Draft Plan defines Excess Water as "all water available for delivery 
through the CAP in excess of the quantities scheduled under long-tenn contracts and 
subcontracts." In point of fact, the Revised Stipulation defines Excess Water as "all Project 
Water that is in excess of the amounts used, resold, or exchanged pursuant to long-tenn contracts 
and subcontracts for Project Water service." Although we understand that the Banlc desires to tie 
its water availability to CAP water that is not "scheduled", the CAP subcontracts expressly allow 
for delivery schedules to be amended; subcontract delivery schedules often are amended during 
the course of the year, and the Central Arizona Water Conservation District has an obligation of 
good faith to meet subcontract water delivery requests. 

Thank you for your consideration of the City's concerns. 

Brian Draper 
SROG Programs Coordinator 

BD:nt:4223 

c: Jack Friedline, Deputy City Manager 
Kathryn Sorensen, Director, Water Resources Department 



DRAFT 12/2/09 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 
2010 WATER RECHARGE BUDGET $3,725,000 

REVENUES AVAILABLE for 2010 DELIVERIES 

4 cent tax
1 

Withdrawal Fee 

Phoenix AMA2 

Pinal AMA2 

Tucson AMA
2 

General Fund Appropriation 

Interstate (If water becomes available, funding will 

be requested from Nevada) 

TOTAL 

NIA 

$3,725,000 

$1,700,000 

$1,575,000 

$450,000 

$0 

$0 

$3,725,000 

1 4 cent tax retained by the Central Arizona Water Conservation District to offset costs. 
2 Projected based on 2008 and 2009 colleclions. 

Water Delivery 

DELIVERY and RECHARGE RATES 

Incentive Rate (Intrastate) 
Interstate Rate 
Replenishment Bank Rate 

Direct Recharge Facility Rate 
Avra Valley 
Pima Mine Road 
Lower Santa Cruz 
Hieroglyphic Mountains 
Agua Fria Recharge Project 
T onopah Desert 

Cost Recovery for In-lieu Recharge: (Phoenix & Pinal) 
(Tucson) 

WATER and RECHARGE COSTS 

Water Stored $/AF 
(AF) 

4 cent tax 

Withdrawal Fee 

Phoenix AMA 12,500 $136.00 

Pinal AMA 14,570 $100.00 

Direct delivery3 1,000 $118.00 

Tucson AMA 3,082 $146.00 

Interstate 0 NA 

Total 2010 31,152 
0 Direct deliveries to the GRIC for Southside Replenishment Bank 

PROJECTED CARRYOVER 

Withdrawal Fees 

Interstate 

Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA 
Tucson AMA

$133.00 

$231.00 
$118.00 

Intrastate 

$15.00 
$15.00 
$15.00 

$8.00 
$8.00 

$8.00 

$33.00 
$15.00 

Interstate 
$24.00 
$24.00 
$24.00 
$23.00 
$23.00 
$23.00 

$26.00 

Total 

NIA 

$3,725,000 

$1 ;700,000 

$1,457,000 

$118,000 
$450,000 

$0 

$3,725,000 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 

Central Arizona Water Conservation District 

4 cent tax Available 

Maricopa
4 

$110,293,000 

Pinal
4 

$1,966,000 

Pima4 
$12,600,000 

Total 2010 $124,859,000 

Water Stored $/AF Total 

(AF) 

4 cent tax Utilized 
Maricopa 40,900 $136.00 $5,562,000 

Pinal 19,630 $100.00 $1,963,000 
Pima: 

Delivery 61,918 $146.00 $9,040,000 

Credits5 
812 $148.00 $120,000 

Total 2010 123,260 $16,685,000 

4 Estimate based on carryover and projeclions for 2010 collections 
5 Estimated credils available based on 2009 Tohono O'odham Nation deliveries 



Briefing Paper 

On-River Firming 

In January, 2008, the Mohave County Water Authority (MCWA) approached the AWBA 

requesting to amend the Agreement to Firm Future Supplies (Agreement to Firm). The 

Agreement to Firm recognized that the exhibits could be modified to reflect changes in 

additional available credits and changes in the parties' entitlements (& additional parties within 

MCWA). 

1. MCWA had recently acquired new Colorado River water entitlement (Cibola Irrigation

District and City of Kingman) and wanted to include these new supplies in the 

Agreement to Firm. MCWA also recognized the need to include language addressing 

methodology and time frame for payback of credits. 

2. Following approval of Resolution 2008-1
1 

in March, 2008, the MCWA had

requested the AWBA consider amending the Agreement to Firm to also provide 

contractual certainty that the credits they paid to replace would be available for future 

use. 

3. After further discussion, the AWBA had concerns over contractually committing

provisions of Resolution 2008-1 due to a number of factors including updated modeling 

runs showing more optimistic projections, recent legislative transfers from the AWB 

Fund, and significant Indian firming obligations remaining. For these reasons, the AWBA 

was not comfortable in contractually incorporating replacement account provisions into 

the Agreement to Firm, but felt the Resolution 2008-1 was still the appropriate 

mechanism to indicate the AWBA position on how to deal with the replacement credits. 

4. No further action has been taken toward amending the Agreement to Firm.

At this time staff is bringing back for discussion amendments to the Agreement to Firm to 

address desired changes stated in item 1 above. Staff is recommending 1) amending Exhibits A 

and B to reflect newly acquired Colorado River water entitlement and recomputed long term 

1 
Resolution 2008-1 establishes a LTSC replacement account for 4

th 
priority Colorado River M&I users. As credits 

are used and replaced, these replacement credits will be placed in a separate replacement subaccount and be 

earmarked for the entity that reimburses the AWBA for the replacement of those credits. Additionally, on-river 4th 

priority M&I users that had not contracted with the AWBA for firming will be given additional opportunities for 

firming 100% of their entitlements. 



storage credits created, respectively, 2) eliminating language in the body of the Agreement that 

restricts amending Exhibit A thereby allowing others not part of the original Agreement the 

opportunity to participate in firming, and 3) adding language to the body of the Agreement to 

address timing of payback of credits. 

Additionally, staff believes it is appropriate to outline a process for allowing other on-river M&I 

users that are outside the MCWA, the opportunity to participate in on-river firming. A process 

could be memorialized in a resolution similar to Resolution 2008-1. 



DRAFf 12/11/09 

Amendment No. 1 to 

EXHIBIT A 

This Amended Exhibit A, made this __ day of _ _ _ _____ , 2009, to be 
effective under and as part of the Agreement to Firm Future Supplies shall become 
effective on the date of execution and shall remain in effect until superseded by another 
Amended Exhibit A executed by all of the parties. This Amended Exhibit A or any 
superseding Amended Exhibit A shall terminate with the termination of the Agreement to 
Firm Future Supplies. 

RECITALS 

A. Mohave County Water Authority (MCWA) and the Arizona Water Banking
Authority (A WBA) entered into the Agreement to Firm Future Supplies on
February 4, 2005.

B. MCW A acquired a portion of the Article 5 Contract previously held by Cibola
Irrigation District and the City of Kingman.

C. MCW A wishes to amend Exhibit A to include their newly acquired Colorado
River water entitlement in the Agreement to Firm Future Supplies.

Subcontract Entity 

Arizona State Parks 

Bullhead City 

Lake Havasu City 

Mohave Water Cons. Dist. 

Mohave County Water Authority 

Total 

EXHIBIT 

L TS Credits Reserved (AF) 
(as of December 2009 based on 
proportion of 403,830/420,000) 

377 

88,844 

105,473 

20,106 

32,580 

247,380 

LTS Credits (AF) 
Maximum Total 

(based on 420,000 AF) 

392 

92,401 

109,696 

20,911 

33,885 

257,285 

In Witness of this Agreement, the Par6es affix their official signatures below, 

acknowledging execution of this Exhibit A on the ___ day of _____ _, 2009. 



DRAFf 12/11/09 

Attest: 

By: __________ _ 
Thomas Buschatzkc, Secretary 

Attest: 

By:----------
Monica Gates, Secretaryffreasurer 

Arizona Water Hanking Authority 

By:-------------
Herbert R. Guenther, Chairman 

Mohave County Water Authority 

By:-----------
Tom Griffin, Chairman 



DRAFf 12/11/09 

Amendment No. 1 to 

EXHIBITB 

This Amended Exhibit B, made this ___ day of _______ _ _  , 2009, to be 
effective under and as part of the Agreement to Firm Future Supplies shall become effective on 

the date of execution and shall remain in effect until superseded by another Amended Exhibit B 
executed by all of the parties. This Amended Exhibit B or any superseding Amended Exhibit B 

shall terminate with the termination of the Agreement to Firm Future Supplies 

RECITALS 

A. Mohave County Water Authority and the Arizona Water Banking Authority (AWBA) entered
into the Agreement to Firm Future Supplies on February 4, 2005.

B. The A WBA recomputed the Long Term Storage (LTS) credits created with general fund

appropriations based on expended funds.

EXHIBIT 

Acre-feet of LTS Credits developed by AWBA for the benefit of M&I Users: 

Total: 403,830 (96.2% of 420,000 AF) 

In Witness of this Agreement, the Parties affix their official signatures below, 

acknowledging execution of this Amended Exhibit B on the __ day of _______ , 2009. 

Attest: 

By:------------
Thomas Buschatzke , Secretary 

Attest: 

By:--- - - - ------
Monica Gates, Secretary/Treasurer 

Arizona Water Banking Authority 

By:-----------
Herbert R. Guenther, Chairman 

Mohave County Water Authority 

By: ___________ _ 
Tom Griffin, Chairman 



Lona-term Storaae Credits Accrued on Behalf of Nevada 

);,;�fa: 
;{,j)\ . ·-
�;:_ .. _,:[ 

1st Quarter
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter
4th Quarter

its•': 'I Gtfinu.lftWe,,;, .lP,.erp,-nJ oJ. �Q.a
d ·'C:�t:f�c, I 'lfh� 'd' 'Iii ,. e .. ,,, 11 

I
" re; __ I · c,i/ ,. ,,r C 1eve ', ,-t ,..', .:

( .� ,, ' ·�·-so;O0'0 AF I' 
61,098 61,098 5% $ 
50,000 111,098 9% $ 

14,162 125,260 10% $ 
111,805 237,065 19% $ 

175,569 412,634 33% $ 
114,886 527,520 42% $ 

0 527,520 42% $ 

0 527,520 42% $ 
1,200 528,720 42% $ 

13,309 542,029 43% $ 
53,591 595,620 48% $ 

8,617,393 

2,899,647 
25,723,366 
35,386,306 

21,853,906 

267,030 

2,962,377 
13,893,375 

�®b[e:d frq'JT,1,SN FPnds Av,ailable ·11, ' ,
..:Sub

Resourc·e .. 
$ 5,000,000 

$ 3,723,945 
$ 1,330,000 

$ 100,000,000 

$ 
$ 
$ __ ,. 

$ (8,564,916)4 

$ 
$ 
$ 

, Subaeeot.Jnt 

0 

$ 
$ 106,552 2 

$ 
$ 72,813,539 3

$ 37,427,233 
$ 15,573,327 
$ 15,573,327 l-----l···· .. ··· ........................................................................ l······-------11 

$ 7,008,411 
$ 6,741,381 

$ 2,685.000 
I 

$ 5. 165,274 5

$10,000,000 $ 5,165,274 
$ 1,298,729 
$ (2,594,646) 

,•(/)\) \.w.· ... , ,•_,;1 ............. Sub-total 1 __ _,_ __ 1··------+------- - --+-..:._-__, _ _,___-1 ____ ................. ,. ______ _, ----1 11 ;>·<-:•'_i_. 

68,100 .... $ 17.122.782 

Total $ 111,603,400 $ .101 
!
489,029 $12,685,000 · 1 $ 5

!
165,274 

2003 credits transferred from CAWCD pursuant to Amended Agreement for Interstate Water Banking. Credits for 2009 are estimated. 
2 Includes expenditure of $3,617,393 from monies collected in 2003 as part of the 2002 reconciliation.

$ (2,594,646) 6

3 Includes expenditure of $1,463,095 from monies collected in 2005 as part of the 2004 reconciliation. 4 Pursuant to S.B.1001, $12.7 million was transferred from the Arizona Water Banking Fund: $8.57 million of the total reduction was transferred from the NV Resource Acct.
5 Includes expenditure of $650,403.66 in interest that had accrued on monies previously disbursed to CAWCD. 
6 Negative balance will be eliminated after water delivery cost reconciliation. 



Arizona Water Banking Authority Work-Study Session - November 23, 2009 

Discussion of Acquisition of Additional Water Supplies for Storage by the AWBA 

The Arizona Water Banking Authority (A WBA) Commissioners requested AWBA staff, 
in coordination with staff from the Central Arizona Project (CAP) and Arizona 
Department of Water Resources (ADWR), to begin to evaluate the need and 
opportunities to expend funds in the Interstate Resource Account to insure sufficient 
credits are available to meet the obligation to deliver 1.25 MAF to SNW A (Southern 
Nevada Water Authority). Recent projections suggest that CAP excess water may not be 
sufficiently available to meet the A WBA obligation to SNW A. In preliminary 
discussions, A WBA, CAP, and ADWR have identified possible water supply 
opportunities and issues to consider in acquiring water supplies for interstate storage 
purposes. 

The water supply opportunities are identified below: 

1. Colorado River Pre-1968 Water Rights ( Priority 3 or better)
a. Land purchases
b. Purchase Entitlements
c. Land leases (including Indian and non-Indian lands)
d. Preserve Unused Entitlements (payments for non-expansion of uses)

2. Non-AMA Groundwater Basins (legally available for importation to initial Active
Management Areas (AMAs))

a. Butler Valley Basin
b. McMullen Valley Basin
c. Harquahala Basin .

3. Desalination
a. Sea water (binational project with Mexico)
b. Brackish water

i. Yuma area
ii. AMAs

4. Purchase Existing Credits
a. Indian
b. Non-Indian

5. Effluent

Mechanisms that could be employed to create additional water: 

1. Retirement
2. Fallowing
3. Options
4. Sever and transfer
5. Recovery
6. Agreements



Several issues and questions must be addressed or evaluated before selecting and 
developing water supply opportunities. For each identified opportunity or mechanism, 
the following questions may need to be addressed: 

• What are the legal and institutional constraints and opportunities to develop a
water supply?

■ What is the procurement process?
• Who holds the contract for Entitlement or lease?
• What volumes are available?
• What is the capital cost of the water?
■ What are the annual operational costs to develop/deliver the supply?
■ Is the supply CAP "Project Water" or "non-Project Water"?
• What is the timing to implement/develop the water supply?
• Can the water supply be used during Colorado River shortages?
• What roles do ADWR, Bureau of Reclamation, and others play in selecting and

acquiring the water supply?
• Should A WBA operate independently of other water supply development

projects?
• Can the water supply benefit other Arizona water users? (Inside and outside CAP

service area)
• Are there cost share partners?
• Impacts to CAP customers?
• Recharge and recovery impacts?
• What are the environmental impacts of developing the supply?
• What are the permitting steps/procedures to develop/deliver the supply?
• What level of controversy is anticipated to be associated with the supply?

The next steps in the evaluation of water supply opportunities could include the 
following: 

1. Prepare definitions of the identified water supply opportunities, including the
development of a representative example of the opportunity.

2. Refine the list of questions and issues to be addressed for each defined
opportunity.

3. Conduct a preliminary fatal flaw assessment of each opportunity, based on a
preliminary assessment of the issues or questions for that opportunity.

4. Develop a list of key criteria to be used to compare and rank the opportunities.

Once these steps are completed, staff can report the results of the preliminary fatal flaw 
analysis and discuss the key criteria for comparison and ranking. 



December 15, 2009 

JANUARY THRU MARCH, 2010 SCOPE OF ACTIVITIES for evaluation of 
opportunities for acquiring additional water supplies to assist in meeting A WBA 
obligations under the Second Amended Agreement for Interstate Water Banking with 
Nevada 

As the availability of Excess Central Arizona Project Water to the Arizona Water Bank 
(Bank) is reduced it is important that the Bank begin to evaluate potential opportunities 
and mechanisms for acquiring additional water supplies. These additional supplies would 
then be stored to assist in meeting the Bank's obligations under its agreement with 
Nevada. The Bank has currently developed approximately 596,000 acre-feet of credits or 
approximately 47% of its 1.25 million acre-foot obligation. A conservative estimate, 
based on the Bank's current Ten-Year Plan, indicates that only an additional 50,000 to 
60,000 acre-feet oflnterstate Banking credits can be expected to be developed using 
excess water during this time. 

The following is a scope of activities that could be undertaken in the January to March 
timeframe to better define the opportunities and mechanisms available to the Bank for 
securing additional water for storage: 

• General meetings along the Colorado River to outline the Bank's needs and
objectives in seeking additional supplies. (i.e. Yuma County Irrigation Districts
and City, and with Mohave County water users)

• Specific one-on-one meetings with Irrigations Districts interested in participating
with the Bank. (for the purpose of information gathering, not negotiations)

• Meetings with stakeholders in the CAP service area to outline the Bank's needs
and objectives in seeking additional supplies. (i.e. AMWUA, Tucson IP AG, and
Pinal GUAC)

• Meetings with other statewide stakeholders. (i.e. NAMUA, CPWAC, and USPP)
• Evaluating data collected and drafting a position paper/matrix which begins to

define the parameters surrounding the acquisition of additional supplies. (i.e.
amounts available, costs, legal issues, institutional issues, environmental issues,
and operational issues)

These activities will be coordinated with the CA WCD staff to insure they are compatible 
with future CAP operations and to insure that there are no negative impacts on their other 
ongoing water acquisition activities. For this initial scope only the acquisition of priority 
Colorado River supplies would be evaluated. Based on the outcome of this evaluation, 
other opportunities such as the use of groundwater, Indian leases, and effluent may have 
to be evaluated. 



ADWR Funding Strategy 

For FY 2010 and Beyond 



Background - Budget 

► Early in 2009, the Governor's office asked
ADWR to begin looking at ways to become
self-funded, given state revenue shortfalls
anticipated for the next several years and
other budgetary constraints.

► ADWR immediately solicited stakeholder
input to develop ideas for funding sources
for ADWR operations.



Background - Budget 

► The Director asked staff to further develop various funding options,
from partial funding to supplement General Fund appropriations, to a
full self-funding strategy.

► We are asking stakeholders to be part of the discussion of probable
options to pursue.

► Faced with a probable 15% permanent budget reduction ($2. 7
million) on January 1, 2010, this would mean a 30% reduction for
FY11 without counting any additional adjustments for FY10 that may
be required or additional cuts that the FY11 deficit may cause.

► Under this scenario, ADWR's FY11 General Fund appropriation
would be about $12 million and we would cut about 85 people from
our workforce, leaving ADWR a staff of about 110 people.



The 15% Plan 

► There is a negative consequence to

whatever path or program we propose

cutting. We developed our proposed cut

based on the following principles:

• Why was ADWR formed?

• What is our core function?



After the Cuts ... 

► How do we rebuild important services if

the budget cuts occur?

• Revenue deficit will continue to grow for the

next few years.

• ADWR requires new revenue options that are

not General Fund.



Option 1 : Status Quo 

Reduce the ADWR workforce by 85 employees. 

► We do not believe that this is a viable option.

ADWR's expertise and resources for sound

water management throughout Arizona promote

economic development and smart planning.

► Eliminating them is not in the best interest of the

State.



Option 2: Supplemental Funding 

Sources 

► Increase fees to reflect actual cost of permitting
and move to hourly billing. Using the ADEQ
methodology results in a fee of $118/hour.

Establish an Annual Registration Fee for all
permits required to file annual report.

► Create a new Water Resources Fund where
most fees will be redirected for the exclusive use
of ADWR groundwater and surface water
management, providing flexibility for the Director
to utilize fee revenue where it is needed most.



Option 2: Supplemental Funding 

Sources 

► ADWR recognizes such a substantial
increase in fees requires a substantial
increase in permitting efficiencies.

► We have initiated a process redesign to
obtain a 15°/o improvement in efficiencies
across all our permitting programs.

► ADWR will host a stakeholder meeting in
mid-January to begin discussions on that
effort.



Supplemental Funding Sources 

► Increase in Dam Safety Fees

• Increase construction permitting fees to maximum of
2.0°/o of project costs currently allowed in statute.

• Increase inspection fees to reflect actual costs .
Graduated fee scale based on total crest length of the
dam plus appurtenant embankments and saddle

dikes.

• The Department would seek legislative authority
allowing flexibility for the Director to utilize Dam

Repair Fund to support Dam Safety Program.



Option 3: Full Self-Funding 

► In addition to the full cost recovery of fees, other funding streams would
include:

• A water use fee on water service from municipal water providers, public
and private. Arizona does not now charge for use or management of
water, a state resource.

• Increase groundwater withdrawal fee in all AMAs to the statutory
maximum of $5/AF or alternatively, redirecting existing fees to ADWR
operations.

• Institute a new Adjudications fee to cover the cost of the Department's
technical support.

• Institute a small surcharge on sale of Hoover A&B and Parker-Davis
power sold by the APA to fund the Colorado River program within the
Department.



Full Self-Funding Options 

► "Water Use Fee" of $0.05/1,000 gallons sold
assessed against all customers of all water
providers statewide (>425).

.► Would generate between $17 million and $20 
million to be used to support ADWR functions 
generally. 

► Would be a very small increase to a customer's
bill, with an average less than 1.5°/o of monthly
bill for volume charges.

► Would be a statewide fee, would be fair and
equitable.



Full Self-Funding Options 

► "Water Use Fee" ( continued)

• Yuma customers would pay: <1.47o/o

• Flagstaff customers would pay:<1.27o/o

• Phoenix customers would pay:<1.53°/o

• Tucson customers would pay:<1.08°/o

• Bisbee customers would pay:<1.08o/o

• Kingman customers would pay:<1.58°/o

• Prescott customers would pay:<1.12°/o



Full Self-Funding Options 

"Water Use Fee" ( continued) 

• Advantages include:

J Simple to assess, collect and remit 

J Customers of all water providers would pay 

J Generates sufficient revenue to fund most of 

ADWR required costs. 

Disadvantages: 

J A Prop 108, requiring a 2/3 vote 



Full Self-Funding Options 

► Increase in Groundwater Withdrawal Fees

• Increase fees to the maximum of $5/AF currently

allowed in statute and redirect to support ADWR

programs in support of the AMAs.

• Would provide about $6million-$7million in revenue.

• Advantages include existing authority and
billing/collections mechanisms in place. Fee is fair as

all permitted groundwater pumpers would pay.

• Disadvantages include that large pumpers would pay

double what they are currently paying, while also

paying new annual registration fees.



Full Self-Funding Options 

► Increase Groundwater Withdrawal Fees

( continued)

• Alternatively, assuming increased permitting
fees and annual registration fees proceed as
planned, temporarily redirect the existing
$2.50/AF withdrawal fee that supports AWB
activities to provide bridge funding for the
Department until sufficient fee revenue is
collected ..



Full Self Funding Options 

► Adjudication Technical Support Fee

• Current costs to conduct required technical support
activities range from $1.5million to $2 million. These
costs are assumed entirely by the General Fund; no
other fees are assessed to support this ADWR
program.

• The annual technical support fee proposed would be
in a graduated form. Those with the most to gain from
the Adjudication by increasing certainty and reducing
risk related to water rights, will pay more for the
activities required to complete the necessary work.



Full Self-Funding Options 

Adjudication Technical Support Fee 

( continued) 

• A graduated fee scale that would look like:

J Individuals - $25 annual fee per claim 

J Corporations, municipal corporations, the State, 
political subdivisions, associations and 
partnerships -for claims <1 KAF, $25 annual fee 
and for claims >1 KAF, $0.06/AF annual fee. 

J Court will not consider a claim unless ALL fees 
have been paid. 



Full Self-Funding Options 

► Adjudication Technical Support Fee

(continued)

• Advantages include a format and mechanism

to pay that already exists in statute and is
known to claimants. Billing process already

exists.

• Disadvantages include required legislation to

secure authority to set a technical support fee

in rule.



Full Self-Funding Options 

Small Surcharge on sale of Arizona power 
generated at Hoover, Parker and Davis 
dams. 

• Arizona Power Authority currently markets this
power to approximately 40 contractors within
Arizona.

• The Department would seek legislative
authority to add a small surcharge sufficient to
generate about $1 million to support fully the
ADWR Colorado River programs.



Next Steps 

► Options presented today provide
mechanisms to generate sufficient
revenue to adequately fund Arizona's
water resource management programs
and functions.

► Provide us your thoughts! ADWR solicits
written comments by January 4th on these
funding options and others that could be
considered.



Next-Steps 

ADWR will need to pursue all or some 

combination of funding options in time for 

the FY 11 budget. 

After reviewing constructive comments 

and additional ideas, ADWR will hold a 

second stakeholder meeting in early 

January to share our direction going 

forward. 



Q t
■ 

. ??ues ions ... 

► Written Comments should be directed to:

• Fred Breedlove, Deputy Counsel. Email
febreedlOVft@_§LZ,W�lter�,QLQY or Director, ADWR
3550 N. Central Avenue, Phoenix, AZ 85012 . 



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY, 

DRAFT 
December 8, 2009 

AND CORTARO-MARANA IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
PROVIDING FOR STORAGE OF CENTRAL ARIZONA PROJECT WATER 

AT A GROUNDWATER SAVINGS FACILITY 

1. The ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY ("AWBA") and CORTARO

MARANA IRRIGATION DISTRICT ("Facility Operator'') enter into this Agreement

this __ day of 2009.

2. 2.1 The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the storage of Central 

Arizona Project water, which the AWBA is legally entitled to store, at the 

Groundwater Savings Facility operated by the Facility Operator. 

2.2 The Parties recognize that this Agreement is one of a series of agreements 

entered into by the AWBA to provide for the storage of Central Arizona 

Project water. These agreements include the Intergovernmental Agreement 

among the Arizona Department of Water Resources, Arizona Water Banking 

Authority, and Central Arizona Water Conservation District, dated January 

28, 2009, and the Agreement between the Central Arizona Water 

Conservation District and the Arizona Water Banking Authority Providing for 

the Delivery of Excess Central Arizona Project Water, dated July 14, 2005. 

These agreements, in turn, are subject to certain agreements entered into by 

the Central Arizona Water Conservation District regarding the operation of 

the Central Arizona Project. These agreements include Contract No. 

14-06-W-245, Amendment No. 1, dated December 1, 1988, between the

United States and the Central Arizona Water Conservation District, and 

Stipulation Regarding a Stay of Litigation, Resolution of Issues During the 

Stay and for Ultimate Judgment upon the Satisfaction of Conditions, filed 

with the United States District Court on May 3, 2000, in Central Arizona 

Water Conservation District v. United States, No. CIV 95-625-TUC-WDB 

(EHC), No. CIV 95-1720-PHX-EHC (Consolidated Action). The Parties to 

Page 1 of 17 



DRAFT 
December 8, 2009 

this Agreement recognize and agree that this Agreement is subject to the 

agreements referenced in this Section 2.2 and that in the event of any 

inconsistency between this Agreement and agreements referenced, the 

provisions of the agreements referenced shall be controlling. 

2.3 The Parties agree that the Central Arizona Water Conservation District shall 

have rights as a third party beneficiary to enforce certain provisions that are 

specified in this Agreement. 

3. In this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

3.1 "ADWR" shall mean the Arizona Department of Water Resources. 

3.2 "Authority Water" shall mean water made available by CAWCD to the AWBA 

on an annual basis for underground storage pursuant to the terms of the 

Excess CAP Water Contract between the AWBA and CAWCD, which water 

would not otherwise have been used within Arizona. 

3.3 "CAP" shall mean the Central Arizona Project. 

3.4 "CAWCD" shall mean the Central Arizona Water Conservation District. 

3.5 "Party or Parties" shall mean either one, or in the plural, both of the parties to 

this Agreement. 

3.6 Definitions specified in A.R.S. § 45-802.01 are applicable to this Agreement. 

The first letters of terms so defined are capitalized. 

4. This Agreement shall terminate on December 31, 2011 unless the parties agree in

writing to extend the term or unless it is sooner terminated or cancelled in

accordance with Section 13.

5. The delivery and use of water under this Agreement are conditioned on the

following, and the Parties agree that:

5.1 All uses of Authority Water shall be consistent with Arizona water law and

Page 2 of 17 



with federal law applicable to the CAP. 

DRAFT 
December 8, 2009 

5.2 Authority Water made available pursuant to this Agreement shall be used 

only at the Groundwater Savings Facility for which the Facility Operator has 

obtained and continues to maintain Groundwater Savings Facility Permit, No. 

72-538100.0005, or modifications or renewals of that permit. The Facility

Operator shall be responsible for all expenses and administrative 

requirements, including filing annual reports with the ADWR, associated with 

maintaining the Groundwater Savings Facility permit. The Facility Operator's 

use of Authority Water at such Groundwater Savings Facility shall at all times 

comply with the plan of operation of the Groundwater Savings Facility Permit. 

If such Groundwater Savings Facility Permit is cancelled or expires for any 

reason the Facility Operator shall immediately notify the AWBA and 

deliveries of Authority Water to the Facility Operator may, at the option of the 

AWBA, be discontinued immediately. The Facility Operator shall notify the 

AWBA if it files an application with the ADWR to amend its Groundwater 

Savings Facility permit. 

5.3 Authority Water made available to the Facility Operator pursuant to this 

Agreement shall be used within the Facility Operator's Groundwater Savings 

Facility for Water Storage purposes only. 

5.4 The Facility Operator shall cause the pumping of groundwater within the 

Facility Operator's Groundwater Savings Facility to be reduced by one acre

foot for each one acre-foot of Authority Water received at the Facility. 

5.5 The Facility Operator shall submit to the AWBA a monthly report of water 

use. The monthly report shall be in a form and submitted within a time which 

is acceptable to the AWBA and shall contain a report of water use by amount 

and type of water used. 

Page 3 of 17 



DRAFT 
December 8, 2009 

5.6 The AWBA shall obtain a Water Storage Permit from the ADWR to store 

water at the Facility Operator's Groundwater Savings Facility. The AWBA 

shall be responsible for all expenses and administrative requirements, 

including filing annual reports with the ADWR, associated with maintaining 

the Water Storage Permit. 

6. 6.1 On or before September 1, the Facility Operator shall consult with the AWBA 

and provide a written projection of the Facility Operator's water use by type 

and amount for each month of the following year, which the AWBA may use 

to develop its annual plan of operation for the following year. 

6.2 On or before December 1, the AWBA shall return to the Facility Operator a 

final water delivery schedule based on the AWBA's annual plan of operation 

for the following year. 

6.3 The AWBA shall authorize the Facility Operator to order Authority Water for 

delivery to the Groundwater Savings Facility directly from CAWCD in 

accordance with CAW CD water ordering procedures and the AWBA's plan of 

operation. 

6.4 The amounts, times and rates of delivery of Authority Water to the Facility 

Operator during any year shall be in accordance with the current plan of 

operation of the Authority. Authority Water ordered by the Facility Operator 

shall not exceed the amounts provided for in the current plan of operation of 

the Authority, unless approved in writing by the Authority. 

6.5 Monthly water deliveries may be amended upon the Facility Operator's 

written request to CAWCD with copy to the AWBA. Proposed amendments 

shall be submitted by the Facility Operator to CAWCD with copy to the 

AWBA not less than fifteen (15) days before the desired change is to 

Page 4 of 17 



7. 

8. 

DRAFT 
December 8, 2009 

become effective, and shall be subject to review and modification by 

CAWCD and the AWBA. 

6.6 The Facility Operator shall hold the AWBA and CAWCD, their officers, 

agents, and employees, harmless on account of damage or claim of damage 

of any nature whatsoever arising out of or connected with water delivery 

schedules furnished by or to the Facility Operator. 

7.1 The AWBA may reduce or discontinue deliveries of Authority Water to the 

Facility Operator under this Agreement in one or more of the following 

events: 

7.1.1 The Facility Operator fails to file the monthly report(s) required 

by Section 5.5. 

7.1.2 The Facility Operator violates the permit or plan of operation 

associated with the Groundwater Savings Facility or takes any 

action that threatens the AWBA's ability to accrue Long-Term 

Storage Credits for Authority Water delivered to the 

Groundwater Savings Facility. 

7.2 The AWBA shall notify the Facility Operator of any determination to reduce 

or discontinue deliveries of Authority Water to the Facility Operator. 

8.1 On or before October 1 of each year, CAWCD and the AWBA shall notify the 

Facility Operator of the cost for each acre foot of Authority Water to be 

delivered under this Agreement for the following year ("Facility Operator's 

Contribution"). 

8.2 The Facility Operator shall pay CAWCD directly for all water delivered under 

this Agreement. On or before the first day of each month, the Facility 

Page 5 of 17 



DRAFT 
December 8, 2009 

Operator shall pay CAWCD the amounts due as the Facility Operator's 

Contribution for Authority Water scheduled for delivery during that month. 

8.3 The Facility Operator shall pay CAWCD in advance all amounts due as the 

Facility Operator's Contribution for Authority Water scheduled for delivery 

under this Agreement; however, CAWCD has agreed to reimburse the 

Facility Operator for any portion of the Facility Operator's Contribution which 

is attributable to Authority Water scheduled for delivery that is not 

subsequently delivered to the Facility Operator or to provide an equivalent 

credit against payment in the future of any fees owed CAWCD by the Facility 

Operator, should the Facility Operator so desire. CAWCD shall not be 

required to deliver water scheduled under this Agreement if the Facility 

Operator is in arrears in payment of any charges due CAWCD for a period of 

60 days or more. 

8.4 CAWCD shall be entitled, as a third party beneficiary to this Agreement, to 

collect from the Facility Operator any charges for water owed under this 

Section 8, along with interest, administrative and penalty charges on 

delinquent installments or payments, in accordance with the following: 

8.4.1 The Facility Operator shall pay an interest charge for each day the 

payment is delinquent beyond the due date. When a payment 

becomes sixty (60) days delinquent, the Facility Operator shall pay an 

administrative charge to cover additional costs of billing and 

processing the delinquent payment. When a payment is delinquent 

ninety (90) days or more, the Facility Operator shall pay an additional 

penalty charge of six percent (6%) per year for each day the payment 

is delinquent beyond the due date. Further, the Facility Operator shall 

pay any fees incurred for debt collection services associated with a 

Page 6 of 17 



9. 

delinquent payment. 

DRAFT 

December 8, 2009 

8.4.2 The interest charge rate shall be the greater of the rate prescribed 

quarterly in the Federal Register by the Department of the Treasury 

for application to overdue payments, or the interest rate of 0.5 percent 

(0.5%} per month prescribed by Section 6 of the Reclamation Project 

Act of 1939 (Public Law 76-260). The interest charge rate shall be 

determined as of the due date and remain fixed for the duration of the 

delinquent period. 

8.4.3 When a partial payment on a delinquent account is received, the 

amount received shall be applied first to the penalty and 

administrative charges, second, to the accrued interest, and third to 

the overdue payment. 

8.5 If the AWBA is not given Long-Term Storage Credits because the Facility 

Operator has violated the Groundwater Savings Facility permit or plan of 

operation, the Facility Operator shall pay to the AWBA any water service 

charges paid by the AWBA to CAWCD for the water delivered to the 

Groundwater Savings Facility which did not accrue Long-Term Storage 

Credits. The payment shall be made within 90 days of the denial of Long

Term Storage Credits by the ADWR. 

9.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as an allocation of water to 

the Facility Operator, nor shall this Agreement entitle the Facility Operator 

to any water other than as provided herein. 

9.2 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as requiring the AWBA to 

provide Authority Water to the Facility Operator in any year, and nothing in 

this Agreement shall be construed as requiring the Facility Operator to 

Page 7 of 17 



DRAFT 
December 8, 2009 

accept deliveries of Authority Water in any year. The Parties agree that in 

any year in which the AWBA desires to provide Authority Water to the Facility 

Operator and in which the Facility Operator agrees to accept deliveries of 

Authority Water, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall apply. 

10. Neither the AWBA nor CAWCD warrant the quality of any water furnished under

this Agreement and are under no obligation to construct or furnish water

treatment facilities to maintain or better the quality of any water. The Facility

Operator waives its right to make a claim against the AWBA or CAWCD, on

account of the quality of water or any changes in water quality caused by the

commingling of water delivered under this Agreement with other water.

11. 11.1 The Parties agree that the AWBA may designate a third party agent to

exercise the right to recover the AWBA's water stored under this 

Agreement. The "Designated Recovery Agent" shall be CAWCD, a 

political subdivision of the State of Arizona, and/or a municipal corporation 

formed under the laws of the State of Arizona. The AWBA shall, in 

accordance with Section 15 of this Agreement, notify the Facility Operator 

of the appointment of a Designated Recovery Agent pursuant to this 

Section 11. 

11.2 The Facility Operator agrees to cooperate with the Designated Recovery 

Agent in facilitating the recovery of Long-Term Storage Credits stored by the 

AWBA at the Facility Operator's Groundwater Savings Facility. 

11.3 The Facility Operator agrees not to register any objection with the ADWR to 

an application for a recovery well permit filed by the Designated Recovery 

Agent or other entities seeking to recover water stored by the AWBA so long 

Page 8 of 17 



DRAFT 
December 8, 2009 

as the water is to be recovered at the Groundwater Savings Facility at which 

it was stored. 

11.4 Upon the distribution of Long-Term Storage Credits by the AWBA to a 

Designated Recovery Agent, the Designated Recovery Agent may recover 

the Long-Term Storage Credits at the Groundwater Savings Facility upon 

written notification to the Facility Operator. 

11.5 The Designated Recovery Agent shall not recover Long-Term Storage 

Credits within the Facility Operator's boundaries that were not accrued by the 

AWBA at the Facility Operator's Groundwater Savings Facility, unless the 

Facility Operator agrees in writing to allow the Designated Recovery Agent to 

recover other Long-Term Storage Credits. 

11.6 To recover Long-Term Storage Credits pursuant to this Section 11, the 

Facility Operator shall allow the Designated Recovery Agent to recover the 

AWBA's Long-Term Storage Credits using the Facility Operator's wells. Such 

use shall be subject to the Facility Operator's operational control of the wells 

and shall be made only when, in the discretion of the Facility Operator, there 

is sufficient well capacity and water transportation facilities available to 

recover the Long-Term Storage Credits without disrupting delivery of 

irrigation water to the Facility Operator's customers; however, such discretion 

shall not be unreasonably exercised so as to defeat the intent of this Section 

11. The Facility Operator shall provide to the AWBA within 1 year after

execution of this Agreement a description of wells and well sites which the 

Designated Recovery Agent could utilize for recovery purposes, including the 

necessary authorization for Facility Operator's use of such wells and well 

sites. 

Page 9 of 17 



DRAFT 
December 8, 2009 

11. 7 If insufficient well capacity is available within the Facility Operator's

boundaries to meet a recovery request, the Designated Recovery Agent 

may install, own, operate and maintain new wells and related facilities or, at 

the Designated Recovery Agent's request, the Facility Operator may, under a 

separate agreement, install, own, operate and maintain new wells and 

related facilities, provided that the Designated Recovery Agent pays the 

Facility Operator in advance all construction costs associated with such new 

wells and facilities. All of the fixed and variable operating costs of such 

facilities attributable to the recovery of Long-Term Storage Credits shall be 

the sole responsibility of the Designated Recovery Agent. Nothing herein 

requires the Facility Operator to construct facilities that, in their judgement, 

would interfere with the operation of existing wells within the Facility 

Operator's water delivery system. The Designated Recovery Agent shall 

reimburse the Facility Operator the cost of obtaining all permits required to 

drill new recovery wells identified by the Designated Recovery Agent for 

purposes of this Agreement. 

11.8 The Designated Recovery Agent shall be responsible for obtaining and 

maintaining recovery well permits and shall pay all permit fees associated 

with recovery of Long-Term Storage Credits at the Groundwater Savings 

Facility. 

11.9 The Designated Recovery Agent shall reimburse the Facility Operator for all 

reasonable costs incurred by the Facility Operator in the recovery of Long

Term Storage Credits in accordance with this Section 11. These costs may 

include, but are not limited to wheeling services, scheduling costs, 

incremental increased cost of power, and incremental increased cost of 

operation, maintenance, and replacement of wells and/or pumps within the 

Page 10 of 17 



DRAFT 
December 8, 2009 

Facility Operator's Groundwater Savings Facility. Prior to any recovery under 

this Section 11, the Designated Recovery Agent and the Facility Operator 

shall agree upon the costs for which the Designated Recovery Agent shall be 

responsible. The Designated Recovery Agent and the Facility Operator may 

agree that the Designated Recovery Agent will provide power to operate the 

wells to offset part of the agreed upon costs. 

11 .10 The Facility Operator does not warrant the quality of water produced from 

recovery wells and is under no obligation to construct or furnish water 

treatment facilities to maintain or improve the quality of such water. The 

Designated Recovery Agent waives its right to make a claim against the 

Facility Operator because of changes in water quality caused by 

underground storage or the mixing of recovered water with other water. 

11 .11 It is the express intention of the Parties that the Designated Recovery Agent 

be a third party beneficiary of the obligations and duties of the provisions of 

this Section 11, and that the third party beneficiary shall be considered a 

"Party" only for the purposes of this Section 11. The rights of the third party 

beneficiary under this Section 11 shall vest immediately upon notification of 

the Facility Operator by the AWBA of the designation of a Designated 

Recovery Agent in accordance with this Section 11. The Parties agree that 

the terms of this Section 11 shall not, in any way, limit the rights or privileges 

of the AWBA under this Agreement. 

11.12 The obligations set forth in this Section 11 shall survive the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement and remain in full force and effect until all 

Authority Water stored at the Facility Operator's Groundwater Savings 

Facility has been recovered. 

Page 11 of 17 



DRAFT 
December 8, 2009 

12. 12.1 Authority Water furnished to the Facility Operator pursuant to this Agreement

shall be delivered only to the Facility Operator at such point(s) that have 

previously been approved by CAWCD and only if CAWCD has satisfied itself 

that the pipelines, canals, distribution systems, or other conduits that will 

convey Authority Water after delivery will prevent excessive conveyance 

losses and are constructed, operated, and maintained in accordance with 

any condition of applicable laws, regulations or order and to the satisfaction 

of CAWCD. 

12.2 In the event of damage to CAP facilities due to failure of the Facility Operator 

to operate in a good and workmanlike manner, the Facility Operator shall pay 

the CAWCD within thirty (30) days of Facility Operator's receipt of a 

statement for the costs of repairing any damage to Project facilities or Project 

rights-of-way caused by or arising out of the Facility Operator's activities 

under this Agreement. 

12.3 If the Facility Operator's Project delivery point is a Project turnout or Project 

turnouts constructed by the United States, and if the Facility Operator intends 

to convey water furnished to the Facility Operator pursuant to this Agreement 

through connection facilities owned or operated by others, the use by the 

Facility Operator of such connection facilities shall be the subject of written 

agreement(s) between the Facility Operator and the owner(s) or operator(s) 

of such connection facilities, and all such agreements shall be provided to 

the CAWCD prior to initiation of deliveries. 

12.4 Unless the Facility Operator's Project delivery point is a Project turnout or 

Project turnouts constructed by the United States, all water delivered from 

the Water Supply System shall be measured with equipment furnished and 

installed by the Facility Operator and operated and maintained by the Facility 

Page 12 of 17 



DRAFT 
December 8, 2009 

Operator at the Facility Operator's sole cost and expense. The results of 

such measurements shall be reported to CAWCD in such manner and at 

such time(s) as CAWCD may prescribe. Upon the request of CAWCD or the 

AWBA, the accuracy of such measurements shall be investigated by the 

Facility Operator, and any errors which are determined to have occurred 

therein shall be adjusted; however, in the event the parties cannot agree on 

the required adjustment, CAWCD's determination shall be conclusive. 

12.5 If the Facility Operator's Project delivery point is a Project turnout or Project 

turnouts constructed by the United States, all water delivered from the Water 

Supply System shall be measured with equipment furnished and installed by 

the United States and operated and maintained by CAWCD. Upon the 

request of the Facility Operator, the AWBA, or CAWCD, the accuracy of 

such measurements shall be investigated by CAWCD and the Facility 

Operator, and any errors which are mutually determined to have occurred 

therein shall be adjusted; however in the event the parties cannot agree on 

the required adjustment, CAWCD's determination shall be conclusive. 

12.6 The United States, CAWCD, and the AWBA shall not be responsible for the 

control, carriage, handling, use, disposal, or distribution of water beyond the 

Facility Operator's Project delivery point. The Facility Operator shall hold the 

United States, CAWCD, and the AWBA harmless on account of damage or 

claim of damage of any nature whatsoever for which there is legal 

responsibility, including property damage, personal injury, or death arising 

out of or connected with the control, carriage, handling, use, disposal, or 

distribution of water beyond the Facility Operator's Project delivery point. 

12. 7 The AWBA shall not be liable for any action taken by CAW CD or the Facility

Operator pursuant to this Section 12 regarding the construction, operation, or 

Page 13 of 17 



DRAFT 
December 8, 2009 

maintenance of connection facilities. 

12.8 Deliveries of water scheduled under this Agreement are subject to 

interruption and discontinuance due to investigation, inspection, construction, 

testing, maintenance, repair or replacement of the CAP and its components. 

The Facility Operator also acknowledges that CAP water available to the 

AWBA is only that water which would otherwise be unused in Arizona and, 

therefore, deliveries of water scheduled under this Agreement are subject to 

interruption and discontinuance due to insufficient water or delivery capacity 

to deliver all other waters scheduled for delivery through the CAP. The 

United States, its officers, agents, and employees, CAWCD, its officers, 

agents and employees, and the AWBA, its officers, agents, and employees 

shall not be liable for any damages when, for any reason whatsoever, any 

interruption, discontinuance, or reduction in delivery of water scheduled 

under this Agreement occurs. 

13. 13.1 This Agreement may be terminated for any of the following reasons:

13.1.1 

13.1.2 

If the Facility Operator remains in arrears in the payment of the 

Facility Operator's Contribution for thirty (30) days or more, 

the AWBA may terminate this Agreement, which termination 

shall be effective fifteen (15) days after mailing written notice of 

termination to the Facility Operator; 

If the Facility Operator remains in arrears in the reimbursement 

of any portion of the AWBA's Contribution for thirty (30) days 

or more, the AWBA may terminate this Agreement, which 

termination shall be effective fifteen (15) days after mailing 

written notice of termination to the Facility Operator and 

Page 14 of 17 



13.1.3 

13.1.4 

CAWCD; 

DRAFT 
December 8, 2009 

If the excess water contract between the AWBA and CAWCD 

providing for delivery of Authority Water is terminated, the 

AWBA may terminate this Agreement, which termination shall 

be effective fifteen (15) days after mailing written notice of 

termination to the Facility Operator; or 

if the AWBA determines in its sole discretion that the Facility 

Operator is operating the Groundwater Savings Facility in a 

manner contrary to law or in a manner which is likely to 

jeopardize the ability of the AWBA to earn Long-Term Storage 

Credits for Authority Water delivered to the facility for the 

benefit of the AWBA, the AWBA may terminate this 

Agreement, which termination shall be effective ten (10) days 

after mailing written notice of termination to the Facility 

Operator and CAWCD. 

13.2 The Parties' and CAWCD's rights under this Agreement to collect any 

monies owed under the Agreement shall survive the termination of this 

Agreement. 

13.3 The rights of the AWBA to terminate this Agreement as provided in this 

Section 13 shall be in addition to all other rights of the AWBA under this 

Agreement and as provided by law. 

14. The Facility Operator shall establish and maintain accounts and other books and

records pertaining to administration of the terms and conditions of this Agreement,

including: the Facility Operator's water supply data, water-use data, and other

matters that the AWBA or CAWCD may require. Reports thereon shall be furnished

Page 15 of 17 



DRAFT 
December 8, 2009 

to the AWBA or CAWCD in such form and on such date or dates as the AWBA or 

CAWCD may require. Subject to applicable federal and state laws and regulations, 

each party to this Agreement shall have the right during office hours to examine and 

make copies of each other party's books and records relating to matters covered by 

this Agreement. 

15. Any notice, demand, or request authorized or required by this Agreement shall be in

writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if mailed, first class postage

prepaid, or delivered to the parties at the following addresses:

If to the AWBA:

Manager 
Arizona Water Banking Authority 
3550 North Central Avenue 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

If to the Facility Operator: 

General Manager 
Cortaro-Marana Irrigation District 
12253 West Grier Road 
Marana, Arizona 85653 

The designation of the address or addressee for the giving of notice may be 

changed by notice given as provided in this Section 15. 

16. The parties shall comply with Chapter 9, Title 41, Arizona Revised Statutes, Arizona

Executive Orders 75-5 and 99-4 and any other federal or state laws relating to equal

opportunity and non-discrimination, including the Americans with Disabilities Act.

17. The provisions of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the successors and

Page 16 of 17 



DRAFT 
December 8, 2009 

assigns of the parties hereto, but no assignment or transfer of this Agreement or 

any interest therein shall be valid unless and until approved in writing by and the 

AWBA. 

18. This Agreement is subject to cancellation in accordance with the provisions of

A.R.S. § 38-511.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement effective 

the day and year first above-written. 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

Attest: __ ________ _ 

Tom Buschatzke, Secretary 

By: ___________ _ 

Herbert R. Guenther, Chairman 

CORTARO-MARANA IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

Attest:_ __________ By: __ _ ________ _ 
Sidney Smith, General Manager, CMID Dan Post, President, Cortaro Water 

Users Association, authorized agent 
for CMID 

Page 17 of 17 





DRAFT 12-15-2009 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

ANNUAL PLAN OF OPERATION 

2010 

1996 

Herbert R. Guenther, Chairman 

December 2009 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 

The Arizona Water Banking Authority 

Summary 

The Arizona Water Banking Authority (AWBA; Water Bank) was created in 1996 to 
store the unused portion of Arizona's annual allocation of the Colorado River. Until the 
AWBA was created, Arizona had not used its full 2.8 million acre-foot share of Colorado 
River water. Leaving a portion of Arizona's water in the Colorado River was a lost 
opportunity; the AWBA has seized this opportunity to further secure dependable water 
supplies necessary to ensure the state's long-term prosperity. 

The Water Bank stores unused Arizona Colorado River water to meet future needs for: 

• Firming (to secure) adequate water supply to municipal and industrial users in
the Central Arizona Project service area and along the Colorado River in times of
shortages;

• Meeting the management plan objectives of the Arizona Groundwater Code;
• Meeting the State's obligation pursuant to Indian Water Rights Settlements;
• Assisting the Colorado River fourth priority municipal and industrial users in

developing credits that could be used to increase their future supplies for firming;
and

• Assisting Nevada and California through interstate water banking.

Each year, the AWBA pays the delivery and storage costs to bring Colorado River 
water into Central and Southern Arizona through the Central Arizona Project canal. 
The water is stored underground in existing aquifers (direct recharge) or is used by 
irrigation districts in lieu of pumping groundwater (indirect or in lieu recharge). For each 
acre-foot stored, the AWBA accrues credit that can be redeemed in the future when 
Arizona's communities, Indian Tribes or neighboring states need this backup water 
supply. 

The money that funds the AWBA and, specifically, water storage for the benefit of 
Arizona (intrastate storage) comes from three sources that are either from existing 
revenue sources or from fees charged to those benefiting directly from the stored water. 
Restrictions on the ways these monies can be used depend on the source of the 
monies, which currently include: 

• Fees for groundwater pumping currently collected within the Phoenix, Pinal and
Tucson Active Management Areas (AMA). These monies can only be used to
benefit the AMA in which the fees are collected. Included as a benefit to the
AMA are both municipal and industrial firming and Indian firming.

• A four cent ad valorem property tax collected in the three county CAP service
area. These monies can only be used to benefit the county in which the tax is
levied.

• A general fund appropriation received at the discretion of the Legislature.

Another source of funding is used for water storage to aid Nevada (interstate storage) 
and is received pursuant to an Agreement for Interstate Water Banking. 

1 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 
In 2010, the Water Bank will store approximately 152,600 acre-feet for intrastate 
storage at a cost of approximately $20 million. There is no interstate storage planned 
for 2010. Furthermore, the AWBA will deliver an additional 1,000 acre-feet of water for 
the purpose of establishing the Southside Replenishment Bank at a cost of $118,000. 

To date, the AWBA has delivered for storage approximately 3.6 million acre-feet of 
water at a cost of $247 million; 3.0 million acre-feet for intrastate storage at a cost of 
$136 million and 589,000 acre-feet for interstate storage at a cost of $111 million. 

INTRODUCTION 

The Arizona Water Banking Authority (AWBA) was created to store Arizona's unused 
Colorado River water entitlement in western, central and southern Arizona to develop 
long-term storage credits to: (1) firm existing water supplies for municipal and industrial 
users (M&I) along the Colorado River and Central Arizona Project (CAP) M&I users 
during Colorado River shortages or CAP service interruptions; (2) help meet the water 
management objectives of the Groundwater Code; and (3) meet the State's obligations 
in the settlement of Indian water rights claims. Changes in the AWBA's enabling 
legislation in 1999 authorized the AWBA to participate in other water banking activities, 
however, no new water banking activities are included in this annual Plan of Operation. 

The AWBA's storage of water is accomplished through the Underground Water 
Storage, Savings and Replenishment Act enacted by the Arizona legislature in 1994 
and administered by the Arizona Department of Water Resources (ADWR). Through 
this program, the AWBA stores renewable water that currently has no immediate direct 
use in either underground storage (USF) or groundwater savings (GSF) facilities. A 
USF is a facility that allows water to physically be added to an aquifer. A GSF is a 
facility where the water is used in place of groundwater, creating.a groundwater 
savings. The program mandates the accounting of the water stored and the 
development of long-term storage (L TS) credits. The L TS credits developed by the 
AWBA will then be utilized by the AWBA when future conditions warrant. The use of 
L TS credits for the three objectives listed above may differ and is dependent on the 
source of funds utilized to develop them. 

The AWBA is required by statute to approve an annual Plan of Operation (Plan) by 
January 1 of each year. Prior to approval of the final Plan, the AWBA is required to 
solicit public comment. A draft of the Plan was presented to the Groundwater Users 
Advisory Councils (GUAC) for the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson Active Management 
Areas (AMA). Presentation of the draft Plan must be made at publicly-noticed open 
meetings at which members of the public are permitted to provide comment. The 
AWBA also makes the Plan available on its web page and accepts public comment in 
writing up to the time the final draft Plan is presented for approval. 

The Plan is intended to govern the operations of the AWBA over the course of the 
entire calendar year. The AWBA recognizes that day-to-day adjustments in the normal 
operations of the CAP or the individual storage facilities may affect the actual monthly 
deliveries made on behalf of the AWBA. If the adjustments do not impact the overall 
annual delivery projections contained in the Plan, they will addressed by staff and 
reported to the AWBA members on an as-needed basis. 

2 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 

2009 PLAN OF OPERATION 

In 2009, the AWBA recharged and directly delivered approximately 182,670 acre-feet of 
Colorado River water, which includes 40,000 acre-feet of intentionally created unused 
apportionment (ICUA) from Nevada stored for interstate purposes. Arizona is planning 
to use its full entitlement of 2.8 MAF, which includes 27,500 acre-feet of ICUA 
developed for and diverted by California. CAWCD recovered and utilized credits 
previously stored for the benefit of California allowing the creation of ICUA (see Figure 
1 ). Arizona is forecasted to divert approximately 2.81 MAF, which includes the 40,000 
acre-feet of ICUA from Nevada. 

3.0 
2.80 

2.0 

1.0 -

0.0 , 

2007 

1.23 

ARIZONA USES 
2.78 

2008 

Year 

1.34 

2.84 0.03 

0.04 
0.14 

1.16 

1.47 

2009 

Credits 

oNV ICUA 

□ BANK 

■ OTHER

BCAP 

Figure 1. Recent Comparison of Colorado River Water Uses by Arizona 

Forecasted direct use of Colorado River water in the Lower Basin is 7.35 MAF in 2009 
(see Figure 2). California and Nevada also created Intentionally Created Surplus in 
2009 for use in future years. 

LOWER BASIN USES 

9.00 
7.45 7.48 7.35 

0.30 0.25 

6.00 
-� CL' 2.78 2.81 
a. <( 

E :iE 
□ NEVADA ::J -

3.00 4.2 (/J 4.37 
C: 

■ ARIZONA

0.00 
El CALIFORNIA 

2007 2008 2009 

Year 

Figure 2. Recent Comparison of Lower Basin Uses of Colorado River Water 

3 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 
The AWBA recharged water at both USFs and GSFs in 2009. Table 1 a lists the 
AWBA's recharge partners for 2009, the amount of water that can be stored under each 
AWBA water storage permit, and the amount of water delivered to the facility by the 
AWBA in 2009. Values are based on actual deliveries through October with November 
and December deliveries estimated. The amount of water delivered to a facility is 
always greater than the amount of long-term storage credits earned by the AWBA 
because credits are computed by subtracting approximately 3% for losses and 5% for a 
"cut to the aquifer" from the total annual deliveries. Final figures for credits earned 
generally become available in the middle of the following year after review of the annual 
reports filed with the ADWR and are reported in the AWBA's Annual Report. 

Table 1 a. Recharge Partners and Water Deliveries for 2009 

Permit Delivered 

AMA Facility Type Capacity (acre-feet) 

(acre-feet) Intrastate Interstate 

Tonopah Desert USF 150,000 0 30,000 
<C Hieroglyphic Mtn. USF 35,000 0 5,000 
<C Queen Creek ID GSF 28,000 6,697 0 
� 
z Gila River Indian IDD GSF 37,520 35,326 0 

0 
Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 42,023 35,000 :c 

a. 

Phoenix AMA Subtotal 77,023 

<( 
Central Arizona IDD GSF 110,000 20,000 12,500 

:!:: Maricopa-Stanfield IDD GSF 120,000 20,000 20,726 
<( 

..J Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 40,000 33,226 
<( 
z 

a. Pinal AMA Subtotal 73,226 

Avra Valley USF 11,000 3,001 500 

Lower Santa Cruz USF 50,000 6,000 2,500 
<( Pima Mine Road USF 30,000 0 2,000 
:!:: 

CAVSARP USF 0 <( 100,000 11,599 
z SAVSARP USF 60,000 4,525 0 
0 

Kai Farms - Red Rock GSF 11,231 2,300 0 
u 
:::> 

Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 27,425 5,000 I-

Tucson AMA Subtotal 32,425 

TOTAL INTRASTATE & INTERSTATE DELIVERIES 109,448 73,226 

TOTAL RECHARGE DELIVERIES 182,674 

In addition to recharge deliveries, the AWBA also delivered water to meet the 
requirements of the Gila River Indian Community Water Settlement Program 
(Settlement Program). In 2009, the AWBA entered into an intergovernmental 
agreement (IGA) with the Gila River Indian Community that identifies the procedure for 

4 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 
delivering water for meeting a replenishment obligation and/or for establishing the 
Southside Replenishment Bank identified in the Settlement Program. While these 
deliveries do not accrue long-term storage credits that may be recovered in the future, 
the Replenishment Bank receives a replenishment credit for each acre-foot of water 
delivered. Table 1 b identifies the amount of water the AWBA delivered for 
replenishment purposes. A replenishment obligation was not incurred in 2008. 

Table 1 b. Replenishment Deliveries 

Southside Replenishment Activities 
2009 Deliveries Cumulative Deliveries 

(acre-feet) (acre-feet) 

Replenishment Obligations 0 0 

Replenishment Bank 1,000 1,000 

TOT AL DIRECT DELIVERIES 1,000 1,000 

The initial Plan of Operation (Plan) for 2009 proposed to deliver 118,523 acre-feet of 
water and did not include deliveries for interstate storage. Because demand for excess 
CAP water exceeded supplies, CAWCD established excess pools based on certain 
criteria. The AWBA met the criteria for participating in two pools: the Indian firming pool 
and the agricultural incentive-priced pool. The Plan was amended in April of 2009 to 
include an additional 16,124 acre-feet of water made available through CAWCD's 
remarketing process. Legislative transfers from the Arizona Water Banking fund 
required the Plan to be amended to reclassify 25,000 acre-feet of deliveries to the Pinal 
AMA as interstate storage for Nevada. The Plan was amended a second time when 
Nevada made 40,000 acre-feet of intentionally created unused apportionment available 
to the AWBA. The AWBA also used interstate funds to pay for the storage relinquished 
by another CAP customer. By the end of the year, the AWBA delivered for storage an 
estimated 182,670 acre-feet of water: 109,450 acre-feet for intrastate banking and 
73,220 acre-feet for interstate banking. Figure 3 shows the acre-foot breakdown 
between GSFs and USFs for 2009 and a comparison between 2009 and previous 
years. 

Ill 
Q) 

·;:: 
Q) 

Q) 

RECHARGE BY TYPE 

(Million Acre-Feet) 

0.50 
-·····- -- ·---· 

0.38 
0.40 

0.30 

0.20 

0.10 

0.00 

2007 2008 

Year 

2009 

0.07 

0.12 

ISi GROUNDWATER SAVINGS ■ UNDERGROUND STORAGE

Figure 3. Recent Comparison of Annual Deliveries to GSFs and USFs 

5 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 

2010 PLAN OF OPERATION 

For 2010, the AWBA will store 152,600 acre-feet of intrastate water. Water storage will 
be occurring in facilities in all three counties. The AWBA is not planning any interstate 
storage. The AWBA will also deliver 1,000 acre-feet of water for the Southside 
Replenishment Bank. 

When developing a Plan of Operation, the AWBA evaluates four critical factors: (1) the 
amount of water available to the AWBA for delivery; (2) the CAP capacity available to 
the AWBA for the delivery of water; (3) the funds available and the costs required to 
deliver the water; and (4) the capacity available for use by the AWBA at the various 
recharge facilities. In addition to these critical factors, the AWBA takes into 
consideration recommendations made by the Groundwater Users Advisory Councils 
(GUAC) of the three AMAs regarding water management objectives and priorities for 
storage. 

I. Water Availability

The factor of water availability consists of two parts: (1) the amount of water
available on the Colorado River for diversion by the CAP within Arizona's
allocation; and (2) the amount of CAP water available to the AWBA for delivery
under the existing pool structure.

The Bureau of Reclamation (Bureau) distributed the Draft Annual Operating Plan
(AOP) for water year 2010 to the states in September of 2009. The AOP stated
that the Intentionally Created Surplus (ICS) Surplus Condition is the criterion that
will govern the release of water for the states in the Lower Basin during calendar
year 2010. Because Arizona has not created ICS, the State will operate under
normal conditions, which allows 2.8 MAF of water available for use within
Arizona. Arizona's on-river use is forecast to be 1.2 MAF, leaving approximately
1.6 MAF available for diversion by CAP. Pursuant to a letter agreement between
the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (Metropolitan), CAWCD,
and the AWBA, Metropolitan has requested the recovery of its remaining
balance of 8,663 acre-feet of credits in 2010 which, when exchanged for CAP
water, will create Intentionally Created Unused Apportionment (ICUA) available
to California from Arizona's apportionment.

With respect to availability of CAP water, the AWBA purchases water from the
category that is termed excess water. Excess water is all water available for
delivery through the CAP in excess of the quantities scheduled under long-term
contracts and subcontracts. The availability of excess water is determined on an
annual basis. The AWBA may order any excess water not requested by another
entity within the CAP service area. The AWBA shares an equal priority for water
for municipal and industrial (M&I) firming with the Central Arizona Groundwater
Replenishment District for replenishment reserve purposes.

The CAWCD Board of Directors (Board), in anticipation of increased excess
water orders, had directed its staff to develop a comprehensive strategy for
distributing excess CAP water among competing demands. In July of 2009, the

6 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 
Board adopted a five-year policy for the distribution of excess water beginning in 
2010. Under this policy, CAWCD created four pools in addition to the 
agricultural pool previously established. One of these pools is shared between 
the AWBA, the CAGRD for replenishment reserve purposes, and the Bureau for 
Indian firming, and is for a fixed amount of 175,000 acre-feet. The AWBA may 
use this water for any authorized purpose. After subtracting the projected uses 
for the CAGRD and the Bureau, the total amount of water available to the AWBA 
in 2010 is 153,600 acre-feet. 

II. CAP System Capacity

Under normal operating conditions, CAP can divert approximately 1.6 million 
acre-feet. Although the CAP is capable of delivering approximately 180,000 
acre-feet per month, the available capacity does not always total that because of 
unique situations, i.e. the filling of Lake Pleasant in the winter months, deliveries 
to the western portion of the aqueduct, New Waddell Dam releases to the 
aqueduct in the summer months and scheduled maintenance and outages. The 
amount of water available to be diverted by the CAP within Arizona's 2.8 million 
acre foot allocation was not a limiting factor in this Plan. 

Ill. Available Funds 

The AWBA will have withdrawal fees collected in 2010 available for use in this 
Plan for intrastate storage. Total withdrawal fees are estimated at $3.7 million; 
of that amount, $1.7 million is available for the Phoenix AMA, and approximately 
$1.5 million and $450,000 are available for the Pinal and Tucson AMAs, 
respectively. 

As in previous years, the CAWCD Board resolved to continue to retain the 
county ad valorem property taxes collected and not transfer those revenues to 
the AWBA Fund. Property tax revenues retained by CAWCD can be used to 
offset the cost of AWBA water deliveries in the tri-county CAWCD service area. 
The estimated ad valorem tax balances available for 2010, including carryover, 
are: Maricopa County ($110 million), Pinal County ($1.97 million), and Pima 
County ($12.6 million). 

While funding was not a limiting factor in developing the Plan for the Phoenix 
and Tucson AMAs, funding in the Pinal area did limit the amount of water 
available for storage. The 2010 Plan expends funds that have been carried over 
from previous years' collections in the Tucson AMA. The amount of funds 
collected in both the Pinal and Tucson AMAs is expected to be a limiting factor in 
these areas in the future. 

IV. Available Storage Facility Capacity

AWBA staff conferred with facility operators to discuss their delivery schedules 
and their continued interest in participating with the AWBA. These discussions 
confirmed that there was significant interest in partnering with the AWBA. If 
additional supplies become available, the AWBA still has sufficient capacity to 
meet its anticipated needs. 

7 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 
The Water Delivery Schedule (Table 2) identifies the AWBA's partners for 2010 and the 
amount of water scheduled to be recharged. The second column in this section 
identifies the AWBA's water storage permit capacities for each facility based on the 
facility permits. The capacity available as shown does not always equate to the storage 
permit capacity because the storage facility operators may have agreements with other 
storage partners. In addition to recharge deliveries, Table 2 also identifies the amount 
of water scheduled for meeting the AWBA's Southside Replenishment obligations. 

NEW FACILITIES 

There are no new facilities for 201 O; however in July of 2009, ADWR issued a permit 
modification for the Tonopah Desert Recharge Project that allows for the continued 
storage of 150,000 acre-feet per year, subject to the condition that storage does not 
exceed 2,000,000 acre-feet at any time. This permit modification provides an additional 
62,500 acre-feet per year of storage capacity in the Phoenix AMA. While not a new 
facility, the AWBA for the first time has entered into a partnership with the Cortaro
Marana Irrigation District for storage at its GSF. The GSF is located in the Tucson AMA 
and is permitted to store 20,000 acre-feet of water annually. 

8 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 

Permitted 
AWBA-Rechar�e Sites Capacity (AF) 

PHOENIX AMA: 
West Maricopa Combine 

u. HIEROGLYPHIC
II) 

AGUA FRIA
TONOPAH DESERT

RWCD 

u.
_CHANDLER HGTS ID

II) _NEW MAGMA
(!l 

'QUEEN CREEK 
TONOPAH ID 

AMA TOT AL INT RAST ATE 

PINAL AMA: 

u.
CAIDD

II) .HOHOKAM
(!l 

MSIDD 

AMA TOT AL INTRASTATE 

TUCSON AMA: 

·--········-···---

u. 

II) 

u. 

II) 

(!l 

• ••·• •• · •••ee,••·• 

__ ., ____ -- - -·-·--

AVRA VALLEY 
PIMA MINE RD 
LOWER SANTA CRUZ 
CAVSARP 
SAVSARP 

CORT ARO-MARANA ID 
KAI FARMS (Red Rock) 

AMA TOT AL INT RAST ATE 

Outside AMA 
HARQUAHALA VALLEY ID 

OUTSIDE TOT AL 

TOTAL INTRASTATE-------·--·---- --- ---

TOTAL INTERSTATE 

TOT AL RECHARGE 

DIRECT QELIVERY (Non-Storage): 

... 

Southside Replenishment Bank 

25,000 
35,000 
100,000 
150,000 

105,000 
3,000 

54 000 
28,000 
15 000 

110,000 
55,000 

120,000 

11,000 
30,000 
50,000 

100,000 
60,000 

20,000 
11,231 

50,000 

_Southside Replenishment Oblioation 

TOTAL DIRECT 

TOT AL DELIVERIES 

........ ·-·-

' 

--

Table 2 

Water Delivery Schedule (Acre-Feet) 
Calendar Year 2010 

I
l 

Jan Feb Mar i Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 
' ! 

o, O' Q! 0 0 '. 0 o: o l 0 O: 0 0 0 
0 o! 0 0, 0 o: 0 01 0 0: 0 0 0 
0 o: 0 o, 0 o: 0 0 0 of 0 0 0 
0 9 000' 9 000 9,000 9,000 9,000 i 1,345 0 0 o: o: 0 46,345 

! 
' 46,345 

0 Oi 0 0 0 o· 0 0 0 O! 0 0 0 
0 o! 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o; Oi 0 0 
0 o: 0 0 0 o: 0 0 0 01 o: 0 0 
0 Oi 0 0 0 O' 0 1,343 2,285 2,285 0 1,142 7,055 
0 Oi 0 0 0 0, 0 0 0 0 0' 0 0 

! i ! 7,055 

0 9,000 ! 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 1,345 I 1,343 2,285 . 2,285 0; 1,142 53,400 
; 

0 1,000 ! 2,000 1,000 2,QQQ I 2,QQQ 2,000 1,400 0 o: 0 0 11,400 
0 500: 1,000 500 o: 0 0 0 2,460 : 2,000 : 2,175 2,365 11,000 

800 1,000 : 2,500 2,100 2,100 1,000; 500; 500 900 0 0 400 11,800 
i 

34,200 

800 2,500 , 5,500 3,600 4,100 3,000 2,500 1,900 3,360 ' 2,000 2,175: 2,765 34,200 

--···- ·-·�·----- •. ·----· --- ·- __ .. "" o--:---- 0 
---.. ··-· ----·---- -·

0, 250 250, 500 500 500 500, 0 0 0 2,500 
O; 0 o: 0 
0 2,500 2,500 2,500 
0 0 o· 0 
0 0 O· 0 

' 

500 500 675 325 
' 0 0 0 
: 

500: 3,250 3,425 3,325 
l 

o: 0 0 0 

o; O: 0 o: 0 0 0 0 
2,500 2,500 ! 2,500 ! 2,500 , o: 0 0 0 

0 Qi Oi 0 5,000 0 0 0 
5,000 5,000 : 5,000 5,000 : 5,000 . 4,000 3,000 4,000 

500 500 500 500 
0 0: 0 oi 

I 

; 1 : 8,500 8,500 : 8,500 ; 8,000 

0 0 0 0 

OI o: 0 0 
o! o! 0 0 

I 

10,000 4,000 i 3,000 i 4,000 

0 O! O' 0 
' 

1,300 ; 14,750 : 17,925 . 15,925 21,600 ; 20,500 ' 12,345 • 11,243 ' 15,645 8,285 ! 5,175 : 7,907 
----·-·-·-·-·-·-·�------------· ________________ ,,__,, ___ , __ ,. ____ ,._,�------

0- 0: 0 0, O· 0 0 0 0 O! O' 0 
1,300 14,750 l 17,925 15,925 21,600 _ 20,500 · 12,345 11,243 15,645 8,285 j 5,175 : 7,907 

' 

Q! Qi 0 0 0, o- 0 0, 1,000 oi 0 0 
O' o: :

o: 0 o: 0 0 0 0 O! O, 0 
O' 0' o' 0 0 o: 0 0 1,000' oi Q, 0 

1,300' 14,7so: 11,925_ 15,925 21,soo 20,soo! 12,345 11,243, 16,645, 
i 

8,285> 5,175 7,907: 

9 

0 
17,500 

5,000 
36,000 
61,000 

4 000 
0 

4,000 

65,000 

0 
0 

152,600 
0 

152,600 

1,000 
0 

1,000 

153,600 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 

INDIAN SETTLEMENTS 

The Plan does not specifically identify storage to meet the State's firming obligations 
under the Arizona Water Settlements Act (Settlements Act), however it does 
incorporate replenishment deliveries required under the Gila River Indian Community 
(GRIC) Settlement Program. 

Indian Firming 

The Settlements Act recognizes three categories where the State has firming 
responsibilities. The first two obligations pertain to firming of water for the GRIC and 
other Arizona tribes in times of shortage for a 100-year period; the third obligation 
pertains to providing assistance to the Secretary of the Interior (Secretary) in carrying 
out obligations of the Southern Arizona Water Rights Settlement Act. 

1. GRIC - The AWBA must ensure that up to 15,000 acre-feet per year of CAP
NIA priority water be made available to the GRIC. The AWBA did not receive a
general fund appropriation to meet this obligation. Although withdrawal fees
may be utilized for Indian firming after appropriated funds are expended, the
2010 Plan does not identify the expenditure of withdrawal fees specifically for
this purpose. Credits accrued through the use of withdrawal fees could be used
to meet this obligation if necessary.

2. Other Tribes - The AWBA is also required to firm up to 8,724 acre-feet per year
of CAP NIA priority water for future Indian Settlements. Settlements for other
Indian Tribes have not been enacted at this time, thus the 2010 Plan does not
include a component for this obligation.

3. Federal Assistance - The State is required to contribute $3 million in cash or in
kind services to assist the Secretary in meeting the Federal obligation to the
Tohono O'odham Nation. The Secretary and the AWBA agreed to develop
long-term storage credits (credits), which will later be transferred to the Federal
government. The AWBA completed this obligation in 2009.

GRIC Water Settlement Program 

In addition to the firming requirements of the Settlements Act, the AWBA, acting as 
agent for the State, is required to deliver 15,000 acre-feet of water to the GRIC for the 
purpose of establishing the Southside Replenishment Bank. The AWBA must deliver a 
minimum of 1,000 acre-feet per year to establish this Bank. The Southside 
Replenishment Bank will fulfill the obligations created under the Settlements Act for 
protection of the Reservation from off-reservation groundwater pumping. The 2010 Plan 
includes 1,000 acre-feet of direct deliveries to the GRIC for this purpose. 

Assignment of Long-term Storage Credits Pursuant to A.R.S.§ 45-841.01 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 45-841.01, an Indian community may accrue credits to further the 
implementation of Indian water rights settlements. One criterion for accruing credits is 
that ten percent of the credits be offered to the AWBA at a price per acre-foot that is 

10 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 
equal to the AWBA's delivery and storage costs at the time of sale. The Tohono 
O'dham Nation (Nation) stored water at the Mission Mine Complex in 2008. In 2009, 
the Nation offered to assign 234 acre-feet of credits to the AWBA from the credits 
accrued from its 2008 storage. For 2010, an estimated 812 acre-feet of credits may be 
available to the AWBA based on the Nation's 2009 storage. While these credits may 
be used for M&I firming or for water management purposes, there is a restriction that 
the credits not be recovered within five miles of the exterior boundary of the reservation. 

INTERSTATE WATER BANKING 

The 2010 Plan does not include an interstate water banking component for the State of 
Nevada. Because of the reduced water supplies available to the Water Bank in 2010, it 
is important to complete intrastate water banking with the funds available to the AWBA 
before interstate water is offered. However, if excess water becomes available later in 
the year after all storage for intrastate purposes has been maximized, the AWBA could 
store for interstate banking to ensure that Arizona's full entitlement is diverted from the 
Colorado River. 

RECOVERY 

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (Metropolitan) has requested that 
CAWCD recover the remaining 8,663 acre-feet of long-term storage credits (credits) 
held on its behalf by CAWCD in 2010. Pursuant to the letter agreement between 
Metropolitan, CAWCD, and the AWBA, these credits will be recovered or exchanged 
and ICUA created. Table 3 identifies the planned recovery schedule for 2010. 

In addition to the efforts to recover credits for Metropolitan, CAWCD staff conducted 
recovery planning in 2009. Staff presented detailed results of the planning effort to the 
CAWCD Board at a work-study session on November 19. CAWCD staff then provided 
the following summary to the AWBA at the AWBA's work-study session on November 
23: 

• Currently CAWCD has approximately 40,000 AF of recovery capacity available.
• Most of the current capacity is from 35 recovery wells in MSIDD, CAIDD, and

HIDD, in the Pinal AMA.

• Modeling efforts show that under extreme conditions, a shortage could be
declared as early as 2014.

• Firming of Fourth Priority On-River M&I users would be required first and current
recovery capacity would be sufficient to meet these needs.

• Modeling efforts also showed that additional recovery capacity may be needed
by 2018 to meet potential requests for recovery by the Southern Nevada Water
Authority.

• Current planning efforts focus on meeting the additional capacity needs by the
following means: acquisition and refurbishment of underutilized wells,
agreements with water providers for indirect recovery, and credit exchange
opportunities.

• Modeling efforts suggests that recovery for M&I firming may not be needed until
2025.

11 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 
Table 3. 2010 CAWCD Recovery Schedule 

Entity Annual Amount 
(Acre-feet) 

Maricopa-Stanfield Irrigation & Drainage District (MSIDD) 2,000 
Central Arizona Irrigation & Drainage District (CAIDD) 3,000 
Hohokam Irrigation & Drainage District (HIDD) 3,663 

TOTAL 8,663 

PRICING 

In June 2009, the CAWCD Board amended its water delivery rate schedule for calendar 
years 2009/2010. The Board concluded that because of the recent demand for excess 
CAP water, the incentive recharge rate was no longer necessary. Thus the rate for 
incentive recharge is now equivalent to the rate for excess M&I water. The 2010 rate 
for AWBA is $133 per acre-foot. 

This is the first year that the AWBA will have a different cost share structure between 
AMAs for its GSF partners. Historically, there has been little interest in GSF 
partnerships with the AWBA in the Tucson AMA because groundwater pumping costs 
in that AMA have been much lower than the cost share. Because funding in the 
Tucson AMA is not sufficient for meeting the M&I firming goal and since storage at 
GSFs is less expensive than underground storage facilities (USFs), accruing more 
credits per dollar spent, the AWBA Commission directed staff to pursue GSF 
opportunities in the Tucson AMA. Based on data submitted by the Tucson GSF 
operators, which included a range of groundwater pumping costs and cost shares paid 
by other partners, it was determined that a reasonable cost share for 2010 is $15 per 
acre-foot. 

Groundwater pumping costs in the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs vary depending on energy 
sources used and the location of wells, i.e. depth to water. The AWBA increased the 
cost share for the GSF partners by $1 to $33 per acre-foot for the Phoenix and Pinal 
AMAs, which is comparable to the average groundwater pumping costs in these areas. 

Table 4 reflects the water delivery rate CAWCD will charge the AWBA, the cost share 
GSF operators pay, and the rates the AWBA pays to utilize different USFs for M&I 
firming. For other than M&I firming purposes, the AWBA also pays a capital charge 
component. There is no administrative cost component in the facility cost because the 
AWBA pays the CAWCD administrative costs on an annual basis. The rate established 
for interstate banking is $231 per acre-foot, plus facility costs and facility capital costs. 

12 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 

Table 4. 2010 Water and Facility Rates 

CAWCD delivery rate to AWBA for water storage 

Interstate rate 

Groundwater Savings Facility operator cost share rate 
1 

Intrastate 

Phoenix and Pinal AMAs 

Tucson AMA 

Interstate 

Underground Storage Facility rate paid by AWBA 

Agua Fria Recharge Project (CAWCD) 
2 

Hieroglyphic Mtns. (CAWCD) 
2 

Tonopah Desert Recharge Project (CAWCD) 
2 

West Maricopa Combine 

Avra Valley (CAWCD) 
3 

Lower Santa Cruz (CAW CD/Pima County) 
3 

Pima Mine Road (CAWCD) 
3 

Clearwater Facility (Tucson Water - CAVSARP/SAVSARP) 

CAWCD rate to AWBA for Southside Replenishment Bank deliveries 

$133 per acre-foot 

$231 per acre-foot 

$33 per acre-foot 

$15 per acre-foot 

$26 per acre-foot 

$8 per acre-foot 

$8 per acre-foot 

$8 per acre-foot 

$26 per acre-foot 

$15 per acre-foot 

$15 per acre-foot 

$15 per acre-foot 

$14.30 per acre-foot 

$118 per acre-foot 

1 This rate is paid directly to CAP by the GSF operators and is not available as revenue to the AWBA. The
AWBA's rate for delivery of in lieu water is thus reduced to $100/af for intrastate deliveries to the Phoenix and 
Pinal AMAs, $118/af to the Tucson AMA, and $205/af for interstate deliveries. 

2 
Additional capital charge of $15 per acre-foot for interstate storage. 

3 Additional capital charge of $9 per acre-foot for interstate storage.

ACCOUNTING 

The AWBA's enabling legislation required the development of an accounting 
system that allows the tracking of all long-term storage credits accrued by the 
AWBA and the funding sources from which they were developed. The ADWR 
has established accounts that track both credits and funds. 

The estimated total cost of the AWBA's 2010 Plan of Operation is approximately 
$20 million. Table 5 provides estimates of the funds available to be utilized by 
the AWBA, including any funds carried over from previous years and an estimate 
of funds to be collected during the year, the funds to be utilized, the entity that 
holds the funds, and the credits that will accrue to those accounts based on the 
2010 Plan. 

13 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 

Table 5. Funding for 2010 Annual Plan of Operation 

Credits 
Funds Available ($) Funds Utilized ($) (AF) 

AWBA CAWCD AWBA CAWCD 

Withdrawal Fees 

Phoenix AMA $1,700,000 - $1,700,000 - 12,030 

Pinal AMA
1 

$1,575,000 - $1,575,000 - 13,400 

Tucson AMA $450,000 - $450,000 - 2,830 

Four Cent Tax 

Phoenix AMA $0 $110,218,000 $0 $5,562,000 37,630 

Pinal AMA $0 $1,966,000 $0 $1,963,000 18,060 

Tucson AMA2'3 $0 $12,700,000 $0 $9,160,000 57,740 

Other 

General $0 

Phoenix AMA - $0 - 0 

Pinal AMA - $0 - 0 

Tucson AMA - $0 - 0 

Indian Firming $0 

Phoenix AMA - $0 - 0 

Pinal AMA - $0 - 0 

Tucson AMA - $0 - 0 

Gifts, Grants, Donations 
Shortage Reparations 

(NV): $0 

Phoenix AMA - $0 - 0 

Pinal AMA - $0 - 0 

Tucson AMA - $0 - 0 

Interstate Banking- Nevada 

Operatinq
4 

$31,447,000 $0 0 

Resource $5,169,000 $0 0 

Total Funds Available Total Funds Expended Credits 

$165,200,000 $20,410,000 141,170 
Includes expenditure for 1,000 acre feet of direct dehvenes for establishing the Southside Replenishment Bank 
under the Gila River Indian Water Settlement Program. 

2 
Includes CAW CD's capital charge recovery for costs of construction of state demonstration projects when facilities 
are used for interstate purposes and by entities that do not pay the 4¢ ad valorem tax. Revenue through 2009 is 
estimated to be $1,719,467. 

3 Includes expenditure of $120,176 for the assignment of an estimated 812 acre-feet of credits to the AWBA from the
Tohono O'odham Nation pursuant to §45-841.01. 

4
The amount of funding that will be available from the Southern Nevada Water Authority if water becomes available 
for interstate storage. 

The 2010 Plan was developed expending all available withdrawal fees in the three 
AMAs. The Plan also requires that CAWCD utilize a portion of the four-cent tax they 
collect to offset water costs to the AWBA. 

14 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 

Table 6 provides an estimate of the AWBA funds expended and the credits that have 
accrued to the various accounts based on the AWBA's recharge activities since 
inception. 

Table 6. Cumulative Totals of Long-term Storage Credits 1997-2009 

Withdrawal Fee 

Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA
2 

Tucson AMA
3 

Four Cent Tax 

Maricopa County 

Pinal County 

Pima County 

Other 

General Fund
4 

Indian Firming 

Shortage Reparations 

Interstate 

Nevada
5 

TOTAL 

FUNDS 

EXPENDED 

$14,713,676 

$12,069,167 

$6,793,004 

$61,292,863 

$5,613,865 

$21,103,735 

$11,100,865 

$1,522,115 

$6,394,964 

$3,183,786 

$2,338,171 

$0 

$0 

$2,338,171 

$2,307,919 

$1,099,339 

$1,208,580 

$0 

$111,603,400 

$14,523,027 

$74,247,908 

$22,832,465 

$248,936,664 

CREDITS 

AMOUNT (AF) LOCATION 

261,363 

361,762 

90,831 

1,145,822 

155,046 

267,120 

403,830 

42,316 

306,968 

54,546 

28,436 

0 

0 

28,436 

76,102 

20,642 

55,460 

0 

595,620 

56,370 

446,144 

93,106 

3,385,931 

Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 

Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 

Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 

Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 

Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 

Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 

1 
Actual credits used for 1997-2008; credits estimated for 2009. 

2 
Includes expenditure of $108,000 for Southside Replenishment Bank deliveries. 

3 Includes expenditure of $22,698 for the assignment of 234 acre-feet of credits to the AWBA from the
Tohono O'odham Nation pursuant to §45-841.01. 

4 
230,280 AF of credits reserved pursuant to contract dated February 2, 2005 with Mohave County Water 
Authority. 

5 
Includes 50,000 acre-feet of credits transferred from CAW CD pursuant to Amended Agreement for 
Interstate Water Banking. 

15 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 

Table 7 identifies the progress made on the AWBA's goals and obligations in 2010. 

Table 7. Projected Percent of Goals and Obligations Achieved through 2010 

Location and Funding Source Goal Obligation Non-Credit Credits Percent 
Objective Goal/Oblig. Accrued Goal/Oblig. 

Achieved (AF) Achieved 

Phoenix AMA 

M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 1,566,000 AF 1,182,162 75% 

Groundwater Mgmt 1 Withdrawal Fees 272,863 93% 

Pinal AMA 

M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 243,000 AF 173,106 71% 

Groundwater Mgmt
1 

Withdrawal Fees 375,162 

Tucson AMA 

M&I Firming2 Ad valorem tax 864,000 AF 326,057 38% 

Groundwater Mgmt1 •2 Withdrawal Fees 85,533 48% 

On-River M&I 
Firming3 

General Fund 420,000 AF 403,830 96%4 

Indian Settlements: 

350,000 AF5 

up to 15,000 
GRIC Firming Withdrawal Fees AF/YR 0 0% 

Phoenix AMA 0 

Pinal AMA 0 

200,000 AF5 

up to 8,724 
Future Settlements Withdrawal Fees AF/YR 0 0% 

Federal Assistance $3,000,000 $3,000,000 33,968 100% 

SAWRSA Appropriation $2,338,171 28,436 

Withdrawal Fees $630,489 5,532 

Cost of Services6 
$31,339 n/a 

15,000 AF 
Southside Repl. Bank Withdrawal Fees Direct Delivery 15,000 AF 2,000 13% 

Interstate Water Contract with 
Banking - NV Nevada 1,250,000 AF7 595,620 48% 

Shortage Gifts, Grants, 
Reparations- Nevada Donations $8,000,000 $2,307,919 76,102 29% 

1 Withdrawal fees could be utilized in addition to 4¢ ad valorem tax revenues for M&I firming if needed to reach firming goals.
2 Includes credits acquired from the Tohono O'odham Nation pursuant to §45-841. 
3 By resolution passed in 2002, the AWBA established on-river firming as the highest priority of use for credits accrued 
through expenditure of general fund appropriations. Pursuant to the AWBA Agreement to Firm with the Mohave County 
Water Authority (MCWA) dated February 4, 2005, a total of 230,280 acre-feet of credits were transferred to the AWBA long
term-storage sub-account for the MCWA in 2005. 
4 This percentage reflects full utilization of general fund credits accrued to date and would change as other objectives are
identified by the AWBA. 
5 Based on estimates from the Indian Firming Study Commission Report dated January 6, 2006. 

6 Include $14,883 and $16,456 deducted for payment of cost of services for FYOB and FY09, respectively.
7 Pursuant to the Amended Agreement for Interstate Water Banking, the AWBA has committed to have this number of long
term storage credits within the Nevada sub-account. 

16 



DRAFT 12-15-2009 

PUBLIC REVIEW AND COMMENT 

The AWBA staff held meetings with the GUACs for the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson 
AMAs as required by statute. The Plan was distributed to the public and was posted on 
the AWBA web page for public review and comment. 

Phoenix GUAC 

In general, the GUAC supported the Plan as presented. There were questions 
concerning legislative transfers from the AWBA Fund and this would impact the AWBA 
in meeting its obligations. The GUAC continued to encourage the AWBA to work with 
appropriate entities to develop recovery plans. 

Pinal GUAC 

The GUAC supported the Plan as presented. Staff provided background information on 
the Southside Replenishment Program and on AWBA obligations for delivery of water 
in establishing the Southside Replenishment Bank. Members expressed overall 
concern over the legislative transfers from the Arizona Water Banking Fund and the 
resultant impacts to the AWBA in storing water supplies. The Pinal GUAC fully supports 
efforts to ensure that the AWBA continues to function as intended and meet its 
obligations within the AMAs. 

Tucson GUAC 

General discussion regarding the Plan included the relationship of water availability to 
CAWCD's rate increase and new policy on pools. There were questions concerning 
ADWR's recent self funding proposal and, specifically, the option proposing to 
temporarily redirect existing withdrawal fees from the Arizona Water Bank Fund to 
ADWR. Comments were made requesting clarification in the Plan on the status of 
recovery planning efforts. The GUAC supports the AWBA in their efforts to develop 
different cost share pricing for GSFs in the three AMA's and stated that the lower cost 
in Tucson will increase participation and help to achieve the M&I firming goal in the 
Tucson AMA. 

17 



DRAFT 11/24/09 

RECOVERY AGREEMENT 
AMONG 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY, CENTRAL ARIZONA WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT, SOUTHERN NEVADA WATER AUTHORITY AND 

COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION OF NEV ADA 

This Recovery Agreement is made this _ day of ______ , among the Arizona Water 
Banking Authority ("A WBA,"), Central Arizona Water Conservation District ("CA WCD"), 
Southern Nevada Water Authority ("SNW A") and Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
("CRCN") in order to address some details of the "recovery of intrastate and interstate Long
term Storage Credits" as contemplated by the Second Amended Agreement for Interstate Water 
Banking Among the AWBA, SNWA and CRCN ("Interstate Water Banking Agreement"). 

1. This Recovery Agreement shall be interpreted at all times to be consistent with the
Interstate Water Banking Agreement, the Storage and Interstate Release Agreement
between the Secretary of the Interior, AWBA, SNW A and CRCN, dated December 18,
2002, and the Agreement for the Development of Intentionally Created Unused
Apportionment between A WBA and CA WCD, dated December 18, 2002.

2. Relevant provisions of the Interstate Water Banking Agreement provide as follows:

a. Subarticle 1.1.15 provides that" 'Recovery Facilities' shall mean constructed
facilities capable of recovering both intrastate and interstate Long-term Storage
Credits."

b. Subarticle 1.1.13 provides that" 'Long-term Storage Credit' shall mean Long
term Storage Credit as defined in A.R.S. § 45-802.01( 11)."

c. Subarticle 1.1.20 provides that" 'Storage Facility' or 'Storage Facilities' shall
mean an Underground Storage Facility or a Groundwater Savings Facility as
those terms are defined in A.R.S. § 45-802.01."

d. Subarticle 1.1.12 provides that" 'Interstate Recovery Schedule' shall have the
meaning defined in the Agreement for Development of Intentionally Created
Unused Apportionment."

e. Subarticle 1.2.3 provides that "No ownership rights in specific storage facilities
shall accrue to either SNW A or CRCN by this Agreement."

f. Subarticle 3.1.1 provides that "SNW A shall have the right to require the recovery
of Long-term Storage Credits in the SNW A Interstate Account and the
development of ICUA in any year ... . "

g. Subarticle 3.2.1 provides that "For any year in which SNW A will require
development of ICUA by AWBA and the release of ICUA by the Secretary,
SNW A shall confer with the A WBA prior to June 1 of the preceding Year and

1 



DRAFT 11/24/09 

provide notice of the amount of such ICUA to A WBA by June 1 of the preceding 
Year. 

h. Subarticle 3.2.2 provides that "Between June 1 and September 15 of the Year in
which a notice has been given under Subarticle 3.2.1, AWBA staff shall meet and
confer with SNW A concerning the proposed location, manner and estimated cost
of the development of the specified ICUA."

1. Subarticle 3.2.3 provides that "On or before September 15 of the Year in which a
notice for the development of ICUA has been given to AWBA under Subarticle

3 .2.1, or as otherwise required by the Secretary, SNW A shall make a request of
the Secretary for the release of such ICUA during the following Year and shall
provide a copy of such notice to A WBA."

j. Subarticle 3.3.1 provides that "Upon receipt of a notice under 3.2.1 for the
development of ICUA, A WBA shall meet and confer with CA WCD to develop
an Interstate Recovery Schedule under the terms of the Agreement for the

Development of Intentionally Created Unused Apportionment. The Interstate
Recovery Schedule shall utilize the recovery of Long-term Storage Credits to
develop ICUA through recovery methods identified in the corresponding Storage

and Interstate Release Agreement. These methods include recovery and exchange
of Long-term Storage Credits for Colorado River Water and/or credit exchange of
Long-term Storage Credits for Colorado River Water that would have otherwise
been delivered for underground storage in that year."

k. Subarticle 3.3.1.3 provides that "Factors to be considered when preparing the
Interstate Recovery Schedule shall include, but are not limited to:

3.3.1.3.1 
3.3.1.3.2 

3.3.1.3.3 
3.3.1.3.4 

3.3.1.3.5 

Arizona water management goals, 
CAP operational requirements, 
Water Quality requirements, 
Opportunities for shared or joint facilities 
Opportunities to reduce recovery costs. 

1. Subarticle 3.4.3 provides that "SNW A shall specify in its notice given under
Subarticle 3.2.1 if, and the extent to which, ICUA is to be developed through the

recovery of Long-term Storage Credits previously held by CA WCD for the
benefit of SNW A under its October 15, 1992 agreement with The Metropolitan
Water District of Southern California. The Parties acknowledge that pursuant to

the terms of such agreement and prior to the effective date of the Original
Agreement, SNW A made advance payments of the entire cost to recover such

credits and to develop such ICUA.

3. Relevant provisions of the Agreement for the Development of Intentionally Created
Unused Apportionment between the ABW A and CA WCD provide as follows:

2 



DRAFI' 11/24/09 

a. Subarticle 3.1 provides that "An Interstate Recovery Schedule shall set forth the means

by which CA WCD plans to create ICUA on behalf of A WBA in any Year. Except as

provided in Article 3.2, an Interstate Recovery Schedule shall use the recovery and

exchange method, the credit exchange method, or both of these two methods to develop

ICUA."

b. Subarticle 3.2 provides that "An Interstate Recovery Schedule may use a method other
than the recovery and exchange method and the credit exchange method if that method

complies with 43 CFR Part 414 and if the Secretary has approved its use.

c. Subarticle 3.3 provides that "The recovery and exchange method requires that Long-term

Storage Credits in the SNW A Interstate Account be recovered and the recovered water
exchanged for Colorado River water that would otherwise have been delivered through
the CAP in that Year.

3.3.1 An Interstate Recovery Schedule may provide that CAWCD recover Long-term
Storage Credits assigned by A WBA and deliver the recovered water that would 
have been delivered by CA WCD in that Year. 

3.3.2 An Interstate Recovery Schedule may provide that Long-term Storage Credits 
assigned by A WBA to CA WCD be assigned by CA WCD to an entity scheduled 
to receive CAP water from CA WCD in that Year for recovery and use by that 

entity in place of CAP water that would have been delivered by CA WCD in that 
Year. 

3.3.3 If the recovery and exchange method will be used to develop ICUA in a Year, an 
Interstate Recovery Schedule shall demonstrate that there is sufficient recovery 
capacity to recover the necessary Long-term Storage Credits from the SNW A 
Interstate Account and shall describe how the Credits will be recovered and 
delivered through the CAP or how the Credits will be recovered by individual 
CAP customers in lieu of their scheduled CAP deliveries." 

d. Subarticle 3.4 provides that "The credit exchange method requires that Long-term

Storage Credits in the SNW A Interstate Account be exchanged for Colorado River water
that would otherwise have been delivered through the CAP for underground storage in

that Year. The recipient of the Credits shall be an entity scheduled to receive water from
CAWCD for purposes of underground storage in that Year.

3.4.1 The entity receiving Long-term Storage Credits under the credit exchange method
shall be required to pay CA WCD the same fees and charges that it would have 
paid had CAP water been delivered to it for underground storage. 

3.4.2 If the credit exchange method will be used to develop ICUA in a Year, an 
Interstate Recovery Schedule shall demonstrate that CA WCD has received 

sufficient orders for the delivery of Colorado River water for underground storage 

3 



DRAFT 11/24/09 

and shall identify the entity or entities accepting the transfer of Long-term Storage 
Credits in lieu of the delivery of Colorado River water. 

e. Subarticle 3.5 provides that "If a method other than the recovery and exchange method or
credit exchange method is used to develop ICUA, an Interstate Recovery Schedule shall
include such information as required by the Secretary for that method.

f. Subarticle 3.6 provides that "An Interstate Recovery Schedule shall identify the total
quantity of Long-term Storage Credits to be assigned to CA WCD by A WBA from the
SNW A Interstate Account to develop the quantity of ICUA needed for the following
Year."

4. Cooperative Planning for Timing and Amount of Recovery In order to facilitate timely
and effective performance of the above-stated relevant provisions, the parties to this
Recovery Agreement, agree as follows:

a. The parties now anticipate that SNW A recovery will be required on or after 2018.
The parties agree that since significant lead time is needed to construct and
initiate operations of new recovery wells and that sound financial, construction
and operations practices require deferral of construction and operation of recovery
facilities until closer in time to when recovery wells are needed, the parties agree
to meet annually to discuss:

1. The timing and magnitude of SNW A's recovery requests.
11. CAWCD's available and planned recovery capacity.
111. CAWCD's current estimates of recovery capital and operations costs.
1v. The effects of potential shortages of Colorado River water on such 

requests, capacity and costs. 

b. SNW A shall present an initial recovery request schedule in the first such annual
meeting and shall provide any amendment thereto at least three years prior to any
recovery year for which the initial recovery request is proposed to be amended.

c. The parties also now anticipate that CAWCD's recovery capacity may be utilized
for parties other than SNW A on a schedule inconsistent with SNW A's initial
recovery request schedule. Inasmuch as sound financial, construction and
operations practices require at least minimal operations of recovery facilities once
operation is initiated, the parties agree to discuss and amend any proposed
recovery request schedule as may be required to maintain the sound operating
condition of CAWCD's recovery facilities.

d. Recovery Methods Involving Recovery and Exchange of Long Term Storage
Credits for Colorado River Water

Capital Costs of Recovery Facilities. Capital costs for developing recovery 
facilities include the costs of planning, permitting, design and 

4 



DRAFf 11/24/09 

construction, as well as any cost of construction financing. According to 

the Interstate Water Banking Agreement, capital costs may be borne 
exclusively by SNW A, payable in advance if recovery facilities are 

dedicated exclusively to recovery for SNW A, or may be borne proratably 
by multiple interstate or intrastate users of the same recovery facilities. 

The parties agree that, in each annual meeting in which SNW A's initial or 
amended recovery request schedule is discussed, the parties shall disclose 
all available information regarding their best estimates of the costs of 
planning, permitting, design, construction and construction financing and 
the plans and intentions of any other party who may seek recovery 
utilizing CA WCD's recovery facilities. [Example to be inserted) 

11. Operating Costs of Recovery Facilities. Operating costs for the operation
of recovery facilities include the cost of electrical power used to pump
water for delivery to a CA WCD customer or into the Central Arizona
Project delivery system, and the cost of repair and maintenance of the well
site, motors, pumps, discharge lines, and electrical facilities. Operating
costs exist whether CA WCD's recovery facilities are newly constructed
for the intended recovery purpose or are existing irrigation district wells
which share operations as recovery wells and water supply production
wells. [Example to be inserted]

The parties agree that, in each annual meeting in which SNW A's initial or 
amended recovery request is discussed, the parties shall disclose their best 
estimates of the costs of electrical power, recognizing that estimates of 
such costs are prone to gross uncertainty with respect to distant years, and 
their best estimates of the repair and maintenance costs of anticipated 
recovery facilities. The parties agree that they shall explore cost
avoidance strategies, including any means which may be available to any 
of them that would reduce the costs of electrical power, or the repair and 
maintenance costs of anticipated recovery facilities, including the 
substitution of direct delivery of Colorado River water in lieu of recovery 
of stored water in central Arizona. [More on this concept in example, 
including SOI approval and compliance with part 414.] 

e. Credit Exchange for Long-term Storage Credits for Colorado River Water.
Multiple interstate or intrastate users of the Arizona Water Banking system now
maintain Long-term Storage Credit balances with the Arizona Water Bank and
may seek recovery of those credits on recovery request schedules that are similar
to or varied from SNW A's initial or amended recovery request schedule. The
parties agree, that in each annual meeting in which SNW A's initial or amended
recovery request schedule is discussed, that the parties shall disclose any available
information regarding the recovery request schedules of other interstate or
intrastate users of the Arizona Water Banking system, and the existence of any
opportunities for the integration of recovery request schedules, including through

5 



DRAFT 11/24/09 

the exchange of existing Long-term Storage Credit balances for the right to direct 
delivery of Colorado River water, so as to minimize recovery costs. The parties 
agree that any administrative costs, as contemplated by the Interstate Water 
Banking Agreement would not be avoided by such credit exchanges. ISame as 
above regarding Example and SOI approval and part 414 compliance] 

f. Costs A voided. Recovery strategies identified by the parties in the course of
annual meetings, and utilized or integrated into initial or amended recovery
request schedules may avoid costs which would have otherwise been incurred in
the normal costs of operation of facilities by any one or more of the parties. The
parties agree that the actual annual value of those avoided costs shall be set off
against SNW A's actual annual recovery costs due in any year under the
Agreement for Interstate Water Banking, as it may be amended from time to time,
but shall give SNW A no credit beyond the actual annual recovery costs due in any
year. [Example to be inserted]

In witness of this Agreement, the Parties affix their official signatures below. 

CENTRAL ARIZONA WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

SOUTHERN NEV ADA WATER AUTHORITY 

COLORADO RIVER COMMISSION OF NEV ADA 

6 


